AUDIT COMMITTEE

17 September 2020
7.00 pm
Virtual meeting

Contact
Alan Garside/Jodie Kloss
democraticservices@watford.gov.uk
01923 278377
For information about attending meetings please visit the council’s website.

Publication date: 9 September 2020

Committee Membership
Councillor M Hofman (Chair)
Councillor I Stotesbury (Vice-Chair)
Councillors P Kloss, M Parker and M Turmaine

Agenda
Part A - Open to the Public
1.

Apologies for Absence/Committee Membership

2.

Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 July 2020 to be submitted and signed.

3.

Disclosure of Interests (if any)

4.

Ombudsman's Annual Letter 2020 (Pages 3 - 12)

5.

Draft Statement of Accounts 2019-2020 (Pages 13 - 122)

6.

SIAS Internal Audit Progress Report (Pages 123 - 163)
Report from the Shared Internal Audit Service.

Agenda Item 4
Part A
Report to:

Audit Committee

Date of meeting:

Thursday, 17 September 2020

Report author:

Group Head of Democracy and Governance

Title:

Ombudsman's Annual Letter 2020

1.0

Summary

1.1

Every year the Ombudsman sends every local authority a letter enclosing statistics
relating to the number of complaints he has received and decided in the previous
calendar year.

1.2

Attached as appendices are a copy of that letter received on 22 July 2020 and the
table of cases received and decided during that year.

2.0

Risks

2.1

Not applicable the letter is for noting only

3.0

Recommendations

3.1

That the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter be noted.

Further information:
Carol Chen
carol.chen@watford.gov.uk
Tel: 01923 278350
4.0

Detailed proposal

4.1

The council received the Ombudsman’s letter on 22 July 2020. A copy is appended
to the report together with statistics of the number of complaints the Ombudsman
received and the number decided from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

4.2

As the committee will note, the Ombudsman received 29 complaints and decided
30. This is because not all complaints received are necessarily determined within
the year they are received. In fact, there are a number decided during the financial
year that were received the previous year.

Page 3

4.3

This year in the Annual Letter you will note that 56% of the complaints they
investigated were upheld, compared with a 45% average in other authorities. They
undertook nine investigations and upheld five complaints. Of those five, the council
was asked by the Ombudsman to apologise in two and the council had already
offered an apology in the other three, which the Ombudsman considered sufficient.
In two of those latter three, the Ombudsman decided not to continue the
investigation. The 3 the Ombudsman fully investigated were reported to Cabinet.

4.4

Of the 30 complaints decided during the last financial year, 13 were closed after
initial inquiries, eight were referred back to the council as they had not been
through our internal complaints process, five were upheld and four not upheld.

5.0

Implications

5.1

Financial

5.1.1 The Shared Director of Finance comments that there are no financial implications in
this report. However the Ombudsman can ask the council to compensate a
complainant in circumstances where he feels the complainant has suffered distress.
5.2

Legal Issues (Monitoring Officer)

5.2.1 The Group Head of Democracy and Governance comments that there are no legal
implications in this report.
5.3

Equalities, Human Rights and Data Protection

5.3.1 Not applicable.
5.4

Staffing

5.4.1 Not applicable
5.5

Accommodation

5.5.1 Not applicable
5.6

Community Safety/Crime and Disorder

5.6.1 Not applicable
5.7

Sustainability

5.7.1 Not applicable

Page 4

Appendices
 Ombudsman’s Annual Letter
 Statistics for 2019/20
Background papers
No papers were used in the preparation of this report.

Page 5

22 July 2020
By email
Ms Nolan
Managing Director
Watford Borough Council
Dear Ms Nolan
Annual Review letter 2020
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending
31 March 2020. Given the exceptional pressures under which local authorities have been
working over recent months, I thought carefully about whether it was still appropriate to send
you this annual update. However, now, more than ever, I believe that it is essential that the
public experience of local services is at the heart of our thinking. So, I hope that this
feedback, which provides unique insight into the lived experience of your Council’s services,
will be useful as you continue to deal with the current situation and plan for the future.
Complaint statistics
This year, we continue to place our focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be
learned from them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and
have made several changes over recent years to improve the data we capture and report.
We focus our statistics on these three key areas:
Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an
authority’s actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated. A
focus on how often things go wrong, rather than simple volumes of complaints provides a
clearer indicator of performance.
Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things
right when faults have caused injustice. Our recommendations try to put people back in the
position they were before the fault and we monitor authorities to ensure they comply with our
recommendations. Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a
compliance rate below 100% should scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply
and identify any learning.
Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority - We want to encourage the early
resolution of complaints and to credit authorities that have a positive and open approach to

Page 6

resolving complaints. We recognise cases where an authority has taken steps to put things
right before the complaint came to us. The authority upheld the complaint and we agreed
with how it offered to put things right.
Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of
authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils,
District Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs.
This data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a
copy of this letter on 29 July 2020, and our Review of Local Government Complaints. For
further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website.
Resources to help you get it right
There are a range of resources available that can support you to place the learning from
complaints, about your authority and others, at the heart of your system of corporate
governance. Your council’s performance launched last year and puts our data and
information about councils in one place. Again, the emphasis is on learning, not numbers.
You can find the decisions we have made, public reports we have issued, and the service
improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our investigations, as well as
previous annual review letters.
I would encourage you to share the tool with colleagues and elected members; the
information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems
and is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions.
Earlier this year, we held our link officer seminars in London, Bristol, Leeds and Birmingham.
Attended by 178 delegates from 143 local authorities, we focused on maximising the impact
of complaints, making sure the right person is involved with complaints at the right time, and
how to overcome common challenges.
We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities
and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. During the year,
we delivered 118 courses, training more than 1,400 people. This is 47 more courses than we
delivered last year and included more training to adult social care providers than ever before.
To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training.
Yours sincerely,

Michael King
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 7

Watford Borough Council
For the period ending: 31/03/20

Complaints upheld

5

56% of complaints we
investigated were upheld.

56%

This compares to an average of
45% in similar authorities.

upheld decisions
Statistics are based on a total of 9
detailed investigations for the
period between 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2020

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations

100%

In 100% of cases we were
satisfied the authority had
successfully implemented our
recommendations.

Statistics are based on a total of 2
compliance outcomes for the period
between 1 April 2019 to 31 March
2020

This compares to an average of
99% in similar authorities.

•

Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a compliance rate below 100% should
scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply and identify any learning.

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority

40%

In 40% of upheld cases we
found the authority had provided
a satisfactory remedy before the
complaint reached the
Ombudsman.
This compares to an average of
20% in similar authorities.

Page 8

2
satisfactory remedy decisions
Statistics are based on a total of 9
detailed investigations for the
period between 1 April 2019 to 31
March 2020

Reference

Page 9

18014802
18017040
18018011
18018631
18018668
19010136
18019334
19000529
19000586
19001116
19001510
19001547
19001753
19001751
19003047
19003659
19004215
19005824
19008279
19009831
19010835
19012626
19015615
19017050
19017330
19017473
19018149
19018781
19020175

Authority

Category

Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council

Planning & Development
Benefits & Tax
Highways & Transport
Corporate & Other Services
Housing
Benefits & Tax
Housing
Benefits & Tax
Housing
Housing
Housing
Benefits & Tax
Housing
Housing
Highways & Transport
Housing
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Planning & Development
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Housing
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Highways & Transport
Housing
Planning & Development
Housing
Planning & Development
Highways & Transport
Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation
Housing

Received
29 Apr 2019
23 Aug 2019
14 May 2019
16 May 2019
14 May 2019
27 Nov 2019
09 Apr 2019
09 Apr 2019
10 Apr 2019
23 Apr 2019
29 Apr 2019
30 Apr 2019
13 May 2019
02 May 2019
28 May 2019
06 Jun 2019
14 Jun 2019
08 Jul 2019
16 Aug 2019
12 Sep 2019
27 Sep 2019
25 Oct 2019
12 Dec 2019
19 Feb 2020
17 Jan 2020
20 Jan 2020
29 Jan 2020
10 Feb 2020
02 Mar 2020

Reference

Authority

Category

Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council
Watford Borough Council

Housing
Planning & Development
Planning & Development
Planning & Development
Highways & Transport

22/07/19
29/04/19
13/05/19
21/11/19
05/12/19

18018093 Watford Borough Council
18018631 Watford Borough Council

Benefits & Tax
Corporate & Other
Services

18/04/19 Closed after initial
enquiries
02/07/19 Closed
after initial
enquiries

26(6)(a) tribunal Other
Not warranted by alleged
mal/service failure

18018668 Watford Borough Council
19010136 Watford Borough Council

Housing
Benefits & Tax

06/12/19 Not Upheld
23/01/20 Closed after initial
enquiries

no mal
Not warranted by alleged
injustice

18019334 Watford Borough Council

Housing

29/05/19 Closed after initial
enquiries

Not warranted by alleged
mal/service failure

19000529 Watford Borough Council

Benefits & Tax

29/05/19 Closed after initial
enquiries

26(6)(a) tribunal Other

19000586 Watford Borough Council

Housing

10/04/19 Referred back for local
resolution

Premature Decision - advice
given

19001116 Watford Borough Council

Housing

23/04/19 Referred back for local
resolution

Premature Decision - advice
given

19001510 Watford Borough Council

Housing

19/06/19 Closed after initial
enquiries

Not warranted by alleged
mal/service failure

19001547 Watford Borough Council

Benefits & Tax

03/06/19 Upheld

Injustice remedied during BinJ
complaint processes

19001753 Watford Borough Council

Housing

13/06/19 Referred back for local
resolution

Premature Decision - referred to
BinJ

19001751 Watford Borough Council

Housing

02/05/19 Referred back for local
resolution

Premature Decision - advice
given

19003047 Watford Borough Council

Highways & Transport

16/07/19 Closed after initial
enquiries

26(6)(c) Court remedy

19003659 Watford Borough Council

Housing

06/06/19 Referred back for local
resolution

Premature Decision - advice
given

19004215 Watford Borough Council

Environmental Services &
Public Protection &
Regulation

08/08/19 Closed after initial
enquiries

Not warranted by alleged
mal/service failure

17015632
18010705
18013129
18014802
18018011

Decided

Decision

Decison Reason

Remedy

Not Upheld
Upheld
Upheld
Not Upheld
Upheld

no mal
mal & inj
Apology
mal & inj
Apology
no mal
Remedy agreed during
Provide services
investigation (no finding on mal:
no public interest)

Service improvement
recommendations

Page 10

Page 11

19005824 Watford Borough Council

Planning & Development

13/01/20 Upheld

mal & inj - no further action, BinJ
already remedied

19008279 Watford Borough Council

Environmental Services &
Public Protection &
Regulation

16/08/19 Referred back for local
resolution

Premature Decision - advice
given

19009831 Watford Borough Council

Housing

07/11/19 Closed after initial
enquiries

Not warranted by alleged
mal/service failure

19010835 Watford Borough Council

Environmental Services &
Public Protection &
Regulation

04/03/20 Not Upheld

no mal

19012626 Watford Borough Council

Highways & Transport

27/11/19 Closed after initial
enquiries

26(6)(c) Court remedy

19017330 Watford Borough Council

Housing

17/01/20 Referred back for local
resolution

Premature Decision - referred to
BinJ

19017473 Watford Borough Council

Planning & Development

11/03/20 Closed after initial
enquiries

Not warranted by alleged
mal/service failure

19018149 Watford Borough Council

Highways & Transport

05/03/20 Closed after initial
enquiries

26(6)(a) tribunal TPT/PATAS

19018781 Watford Borough Council

Environmental Services &
Public Protection &
Regulation

10/02/20 Referred back for local
resolution

Premature Decision - advice
given

19020175 Watford Borough Council

Housing

18/03/20 Closed after initial
enquiries

S26(1) Not an admin function of
authority

Reference

Authority

Category

Decided

Remedy

Remedy
Target Date

Remedy
Achieved Date

Satisfaction with
Compliance

18010705 Watford Borough Council

Planning & Development

30-Apr-19 Apology

28-May-19

10-May-19 Remedy complete
and satisfied

18013129 Watford Borough Council

Planning & Development

13-May-19 Apology

28-May-19

23-May-19 Remedy complete
and satisfied

Page 12

Agenda Item 5

DRAFT
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
2019/20

Page 13

Contents
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES .......................................................................................... 1
NARRATIVE STATEMENT ............................................................................................................ 2
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ...................................................................................... 11
CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .............................................................................................. 22
EXPLANATION OF CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ........................................................... 22
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT ............................................................................. 23
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT .......................................... 24
BALANCE SHEET .................................................................................................................... 25
CASH FLOW STATEMENT...................................................................................................... 26
NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ................................................................... 27
1. Accounting Policies - Single Entity and Group Accounts .................................................... 27
2

Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted .................... 46

3

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies .......................................................... 46

4

Prior Period Adjustments .................................................................................................... 47

5

Events after the Balance Sheet date .................................................................................. 47

6

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Uncertainty ................... 48

7(a) Expenditure and Funding Analysis .................................................................................... 50
7(b) Note to Expenditure and Funding Analysis ........................................................................ 51
8

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations ..................... 52

9

Other Operating Income and Expenditure .......................................................................... 54

10 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure .......................................................... 54
11 Taxation and Non Specific Grant Incomes ......................................................................... 54
12 Expenditure and Income analysed by Nature .................................................................... 55
13 Grant Income..................................................................................................................... 56
14 Joint Operations ................................................................................................................ 56
15 External Audit Costs .......................................................................................................... 57
16 Members Allowances ........................................................................................................ 57
17 Officers' Remunerations .................................................................................................... 58
18 Termination Benefits.......................................................................................................... 60
19 Related Party Transactions ............................................................................................... 60
20 Partnership Working .......................................................................................................... 63
21 Property, Plant and Equipment .......................................................................................... 64
(a) Movement of Property, Plant and Equipment ..................................................................... 64
(b) Revaluations ...................................................................................................................... 65
(c) Information About Depreciation Methodologies .................................................................. 66
22 Heritage Assets ................................................................................................................. 66
23 Investment Properties and Surplus Assets ........................................................................ 67
(a) Movement of Investment Properties and Surplus Assets.................................................... 67
(b) Accounted for in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ............................... 68
24 Capital Expenditure, Financing and Commitments ............................................................ 69

Page 14

25 Leases............................................................................................................................... 70
26 Debtors & Investments - Long Term .................................................................................. 70
27 Debtors - Short Term ......................................................................................................... 71
28 Cash and Cash Equivalents .............................................................................................. 71
29 Cash Flow Statement- Operating, Investing and Financing Activities................................. 71
30 Creditors - Short Term ....................................................................................................... 72
31 Creditors - Long Term ....................................................................................................... 73
32 Provisions .......................................................................................................................... 73
33 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme ...................................................................................... 74
34 Contingent Assets and Liabilities ....................................................................................... 79
35 Usable Reserves ............................................................................................................... 79
(a) Movement in Usable Reserves........................................................................................... 79
(b) Capital Receipts Reserve ................................................................................................... 79
(c) Earmarked Reserves .......................................................................................................... 80
(d) General Fund Reserves ..................................................................................................... 83
(e) Capital Grant Unapplied ..................................................................................................... 83
36 Unusable Reserve ............................................................................................................. 84
(a) Movement in Unusable Reserves ....................................................................................... 84
(b) Capital Adjustment Account ............................................................................................... 84
(c) Collection Fund Adjustment Account .................................................................................. 85
(d) Deferred Capital Payments ................................................................................................ 86
(e) Deferred Capital Receipts .................................................................................................. 86
(f) Pension Reserve ................................................................................................................. 87
(g) Revaluation Reserve .......................................................................................................... 87
37 Disclosure of Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Financial Instruments ...................... 88
COLLECTION FUND................................................................................................................ 93
NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND..................................................................................... 94
CF1 Council Tax Payers .......................................................................................................... 94
CF2 Business Rate Payers...................................................................................................... 95
GROUP ACCOUNTS ................................................................................................................... 97
GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT................................................................ 98
GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT ............................ 99
GROUP BALANCE SHEET .................................................................................................... 100
GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT ...................................................................................... 101
NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS .................................................................................. 102
1.

The Group Accounting Policies ..................................................................................... 102

2.

Watford Borough Council’s Share of Joint Venture Company within the Group............. 102

3.

Related Party Transactions ........................................................................................... 103

4.

WHCP Members’ Capital Contributions (Loan Notes) ................................................... 104

GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS ...................................................................... 105

Page 15

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of
Accounts
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Council’s Responsibilities
The Council is required to:
 make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that officer is the
Director of Finance;
 manage its affairs to ensure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets; and
 approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities
The Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.
In preparing the Statement of Accounts, the Director of Finance has:
 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
 complied with the Code of Practice.
The Director of Finance has also:
 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Opinion
The draft Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Watford
Borough Council as at 31 March 2020 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2020.

Signed

Date: 31 August 2020

Alison Scott, CPFA
Director of Finance

Signed
Date: 31 August 2020
Mark Hofman
Chairman of Audit Committee

Page 16

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 1

Narrative Statement
NARRATIVE STATEMENT

1

An introduction to Watford Borough Council’s organisational overview and external
environment

In February 2019 a report was taken to Cabinet and subsequently approved at Council to create a
Corporate Plan 2019/20. Three years since the previous Corporate Plan was created when led by
the previous Mayor, this was a timely test of both the vision and priorities, and reflects a number of
considerations:
 The Elected Mayor’s manifesto and ambitions,
 The councils’ vision, priorities, values and supporting themes,
 The town and council’s challenges and opportunities, and
 The council’s budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy.
The Corporate Plan 2019/20 can be found at the following link:
https://www.watford.gov.uk/downloads/download/394/corporate_plan
This sets out the strategic direction for council, including how it will meet the challenges and
opportunities of the Watford 2020 transformation programme and deliver its corporate priorities for
the town and the council.
2

Overview of the financial underpinning of service delivery

During the year, the Council progressed its vision in the delivery of a bold and progressive future for
Watford. The financial underpinning of this was through the approval of the revenue budget in
January 2019 for the following activities:
Service Area
Approved budget 2019/20
£000
Community and Environmental
8,925
Corporate Strategy and Communications
1,029
Democracy and Governance
3,468
HR Shared Service
656
Place Shaping & Performance
(5,825)
Service Transformation
2,538
Strategic Finance
1,905
Total Net Expenditure
12,696
The Council also approved a Capital Programme for 2019-22 of £198.3 million. The five largest
schemes in these three years were:
£m
Riverwell (Watford Health Campus Partnership)
56.6
Hart Homes
50.6
Watford Business Park redevelopment
16.1
Town Hall redeployment
9.1
Woodside Sports Village
9.1

In 2018, the Council was approached to see if it would be interested in an investment relating to
Croxley Park. The existing owners were seeking to lower the risk profile relating to their investments,
as they had an increasing number of mature pension schemes. There was therefore an opportunity
for the Council to be both proactive and prudent in the management of a substantial, prestige
development on the boundary that is and has the potential to remain a key provider of well-paid
employment from a diverse range of companies for residents in the borough.
This would occur through the acquisition of a 40 year head lease in Croxley Business Park, with an
option to obtain the freehold of the Park at the end of the term.

Page 17

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 2

Narrative Statement
Careful and thorough due diligence and negotiation occurred over many months. This led to reports
to Members, culminating in unanimous approval by Council of the final £92m deal in January, in the
week before the budget was set for 2019/20.
The Council completed its acquisition of Croxley Park in July 2019. As a result the Council is
committed to paying the head lease rental of £9.2m per annum, increasing by RPI annually capped
at 5%. The Council will receive rent from tenants which is modelled to provide over the 40 year term
an additional £1.5 million per annum income within the revenue budget. As part of the deal the
Council received £24 million in respect of rental top ups and £68 million towards the planned
maintenance programme.
3

Evolution of the Corporate Plan

The current Mayor was elected to office in May 2018. Over the last year real progress has been
made in delivering many of the commitments set out in the corporate plan. There was greater focus
on making the town more environmentally friendly and to tackle the climate change agenda.
The emphasis on sustainable transport initiative is a fundamental part of our sustainability plans and
a number of initiatives have been achieved;
 Travel/Watford transport app
 Bike Share Scheme
 Demand Responsive bus
 Electric vehicle charging points
 A new home for cycling in Watford
The 2020-24 plan can be found here.
https://www.watford.gov.uk/info/20016/the_council/108/council_plan_202024_and_delivery_plan_2020-22
4

Risks and Opportunities

The embedding of risk management continued in 2019/20. The Group Head of Legal and
Democracy presents an annual risk report to the Audit Committee in December to cover the elements
of risk management including the appetite and treatment of risk and the corporate risk register to
ensure risks are being managed appropriately. Financial risks are reported and monitored by the
Audit Committee.
Appendix 1 Corporate Risk Register
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s24013/Appendix%201%20for%20Annual%20Risk%2
0Report.pdf
and Appendix 2 Risk Management Strategy
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s24012/Appendix%202%20for%20Annual%20Risk%2
0Report.pdf
Risks relating to the Watford 2020 programme were included as discrete elements in the regular
update reports provided for consideration to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC). For
example, in July 2019 the following report went to OSC:
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s22374/Appendix%201%20%20Watford%202020%20Update.pdf
5

Strategic Resource Allocation and Performance Monitoring

The Council provides updates during the year and any changes during the year are reflected in the
revised budget. This was agreed in January 2020, as usual, as part of the MTFS (Medium Term
Financial Strategy) for 2020/21. This is supported by regular budget monitoring during the year,
monthly to officers and quarterly to Members. The MTFS approved for 2020/21 including the revised
budget for 2019/20 and as amended for the decision of Council on 28 January 2020 is on the
following page.
The revised budget shown for 2019/20 includes approved carry forwards of £1.302 million from
2018/19, which were approved by Cabinet in June 2019 and subsequently Council in July 2019.

Page 18

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 3

Narrative Statement
The gap shown in the MTFS can be funded from reserves and reflects the fact that long term ongoing
savings do not come through in a full year until the end of the MTFS period. The Council Tax base
figures in the MTFS for future years also include projected growth in the base but no allowance for
an increase in council tax level for inflation.

Page 19

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 4

Narrative Statement
2019/20
Original

2019/20
Revised

Corporate Strategy & Communications
Place Shaping & Performance
Strategic Finance
Service Transformation
Community & Environmental
Democracy & Governance
HR Shared Service
Net cost of services

1,029
(5,825)
2,193
2,538
8,925
3,468
656
12,984

£000s
At Period 8
1,087
(6,228)
2,276
4,776
9,411
1,970
627
13,919

Corporate Budgets
Dividends & Interest earned
Vacancy provision
Apprentice Levy
Internal support to capital programme
Contingency
Interest payable & borrowing costs
Pension Fund deficit payments
Sub-Total

(3,254)
(95)
30
(677)
216
1,042
2,449
(288)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

£000s

2020/21
Draft

2021/22
Draft

2022/23
Draft

£000s

£000s

£000s

1,042
(6,397)
2,292
2,773
8,970
1,992
661
11,333

1,057
(6,522)
2,255
2,820
9,060
2,011
666
11,346

1,057
(6,522)
2,255
2,820
9,060
2,011
666
11,346

(2,254)
(95)
30
(677)
816
292
2,449
562

(1,304)
(95)
30
(677)
214
1,730
2,449
2,348

(2,251)
(95)
30
(677)
210
2,230
2,449
1,897

(3,251)
(95)
30
(677)
210
2,230
2,449
897

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
721
0
0
(741)
500
0
0
0
0
0
480

479
(134)
672
(37)
42
(168)
(295)
(154)
741
0
400
25
0
0
500
2,072

727
(59)
729
(63)
38
(234)
(445)
(164)
0
0
0
25
2
0
120
676

1,085
15
510
(92)
48
(339)
(445)
(164)
0
0
(400)
25
2
(60)
710
896

12,696

14,961

15,753

13,919

13,139

2,782
(530)
2,252

1,782
(1,277)
505

157
(1,517)
(1,360)

157
(334)
(177)

1,000
(641)
359

(8,809)
(3,552)
(753)
(250)
(400)

(8,809)
(3,552)
(753)
(250)
(400)

(9,160)
(3,152)
(772)
(250)
(400)

(9,437)
(3,002)
(577)
(250)
0

(9,722)
(3,002)
(577)
(250)
0

Sub-Total

(13,764)

(13,764)

(13,734)

(13,265)

(13,550)

Total Funding & Use of Reserves

(11,512)

(13,259)

(15,094)

(13,442)

(13,191)

1,184

1,702

658

477

(53)

(12,683)
(2,252)
1,184
(13,751)

(18,501)
(505)
1,702
(17,304)

(19,006)
1,360
658
(16,988)

(17,646)
177
477
(16,992)

(17,469)
(359)
(53)
(17,881)

Financial Planning
Salary Changes (Including Employers Lump Sum)
Changes from Shared Services
Growth
Income & Efficiencies
Changes to Business Rates on Council Property
W2020
Garden Waste charging
Environmental Health Contract
Demand Responsive Transport
Croxley Park
PIB income target reduction
Net effect of Fees & Charges
Impact of Capital Programme
Leisure Contract Management fee
Additional Borrowing costs
Sub-Total
Total Net Expenditure
Planned Use of Reserves
Contributions to reserves
Contributions from reserves- Incl W2020 & Carry forward Reserve
Sub-Total
Funding
Council Tax
Business Rates
New Homes Bonus
(Surplus)/Deficit on collection fund
Additional Government Funding

Gap
Reserves - opening balances
Planned use of reserves
Gap funded from reserves
Reserves - closing balances
Council Tax Rate Calculation
Council tax base
Council tax charge for band D
£

£

32,840.6
32,840.6
268.23 £ 268.23 £
8808.97
8808.97

Page 20

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

33,480.0 33,814.8 34,152.9
273.59 £ 279.07 £ 284.65
9159.95
9436.58
9721.56

Page - 5

Narrative Statement
6

Performance, including outturn for 2019/20

Revenue Outturn 2019/20
The financial performance below is in the same format as that used to report to Members during the
financial year. It reflects the spend to be met by district taxpayers and the balance held for working
capital. These management account figures differ from the Net Cost of Services in the financial
accounts, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES), because the CIES also
includes costs relating to depreciation, revenue spend funded from capital under statute and certain
pension adjustments.
Service Area

Revised
Budget
£000

Outturn

Variance

£000

£000

Service Transformation

5,497

4,946

(551)

Community & Environmental

9,420

9,255

(165)

Democracy & Governance

1,970

1,800

(170)

(6,478)

(5,303)

1,175

1,087

1,194

107

627

551

(76)

2,838

1,601

(1,237)

14,961

14,044

(917)

Place Shaping & Performance
Corporate Strategy & Communications
Human Resources
Strategic Finance (this includes pension
liability costs of £2.3m)
Net Direct Cost of Service

Carry Forwards

725

Total Variance

(192)

The General Fund Working Balance of £2.0m (2018/19 2.0m) reflected the revised target created
with the 2019/20 MTFS budget.
The major service variances at outturn were:
 Underspend of £341k on service transformation projects, these will now be completed in
2020/21 and therefore £282k to be carried forward to 2020/21.
 Routine maintenance costs on buildings were lower by £200k.
 Sports centre budget development work of £185k is to be carried forward to be completed
in 2020/21.
 Staffing costs were higher by £134k on Community Protection Team due to agency cover
required for vacant posts and additional work load.
 Income from investment assets outsourced was lower by £662k.
 Interest received from Croxley Park was £413k
 Borrowing costs were £144k lower, due to timing differences in capital projects starting
and funding requirements.
Capital Outturn 2019/20
Capital expenditure is incurred on assets that benefit the community over a number of years.
Key capital projects included:
 the continuing developments at the Riverwell site, with the LABV (Local Asset Backed
Vehicle) Watford Health Campus Partnership with Kier;
 Substantial improvements to the Public Realm including the High Street and Clarendon
Road;
 Evolving development of the Watford Business Park;
 Investment in Oxhey Park including leisure and recreational facilities;

Page 21

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 6

Narrative Statement


Replacement of ageing vehicles notably street cleansing and refuse vehicles.

Capital expenditure for 2019/20 is shown below:Service Area

Service Transformation

Latest
Budget
£000

Outturn

Variance

£000

£000

2,419

1,425

(994)

Community & Environmental

10,760

8,318

(2,442)

Place Shaping & Performance

27,887

11,672

(16,215)

979

666

(313)

42,045

22,081

(19,964)

Strategic Finance
Total

The Council completed and funded £22.081m of capital works in 2019/20 (£16.852m in 2018/19).
Key variations in the Capital Programme include:
 £7.8M rephasing relating to Hart Homes due to delays in progressing schemes.
 £4.0M of rephasing for temporary housing accommodation due to increased activity in
2020/21.
 £2.1M rephasing relating to the ongoing investment at Watford Business Park.
 £1.2M rephasing towards the acceleration of suitable housing provision.
 £1.0M rephasing for completion of Oxhey Park.
Funding came from £5.81m from capital receipts, £4.42m from grants & contributions, £0.808m from
reserves, £0.322m from Section 106 receipts and £10.72m from borrowing.
The Council is involved in two long term major schemes at Watford Riverwell and Watford Business
Park where spend during the year was £2.5m and £2.9m respectively. Other notable projects during
the year relate specifically to Public Realm schemes totaling £3.4m as well as Community &
Environmental projects regarding Oxhey Park and vehicle replacement totaling £2.5m and £2.45m
respectively.

Borrowing Facilities and Capital Borrowing
The Council did externally borrow in 2019/20 and the expectation is for this to continue in order to
fund future capital investment requirements
Pensions
The Council has disclosed its full liabilities to the Hertfordshire Pension Fund. The CIES includes
the charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with ISA 19 (International Accounting
Standard).
The MIRS (Movement in Reserves Statement) shows how this is adjusted for in the General Fund
for the actual amount paid to the Fund in the year (i.e. the amount met from Council Tax). The
Balance Sheet shows a net Liability to the Fund at 31 March 2020 of £48.680m. This has decreased
from £63.053m at 31 March 2019 and reflects actuarial changes.
There are statutory arrangements for funding the deficit that protect the council’s financial position.
Note 33 to the Core Statement of Accounts provides further information.
Following the results of the triennial valuation of the pension fund, on the advice of the pension fund
actuaries the Council made a contribution of £3.692m in 2019/20 (£3.592m in 2018/19), of which
£2.449m (£2.349m in 2018/19) was to reduce the deficit on the Pension Fund.

Page 22

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 7

Narrative Statement
Performance Monitoring
The Council has a thorough performance monitoring system for Members fully in the public domain
and on the Council’s website. There are regular quarterly reports to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee for key performance indicators (kpi’s). This is supported by the work of the Outsourced
Services Scrutiny Panel, which received quarterly reports and regular presentations with questions
and answer sessions on services within its scope. There is also a regular Finance Digest to the
Budget Panel for financial performance monitoring.
7

Outlook

The Council has been successfully undertaking a transformational approach to its service and
financial challenges, and is well placed to continue with this in the short and medium term.
The deal for Croxley Business Park provides a prudent and effective improvement to the Council’s
financial position, and protects a key asset for the residents’ economic resilience and vibrancy going
forward.
Working effectively in partnership continues to bring both significant economic and community
benefits. The joint venture at Riverwell, which will take over a decade to realise, has already brought
gains through improved infrastructure and is scheduled to deliver significant housing for all ages and
of all types. The Town Centre upgrade and expansion of the Intu site enables the borough to be
well placed to retain retail usage and offers the wider package to encourage full town centre use in
the day and evening. Having anticipated the change in use of town centres, and coupled with a
diverse investment property portfolio, the council is as well placed as is possible given the uncertain
wider picture nationally.
There may be a need to borrow in the medium term (2020/23) for future developments or investments
as these are identified. Where this is necessary it will always be preceded by appropriate, careful
due diligence and business planning, and fully within the Prudential Borrowing regime.
8

Going Concern

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis; that is, on the assumption that the functions
of the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future from the date that the
accounts are authorised for issue.
The Council has carried out a detailed assessment of the likely impact of COVID-19 on its financial
position and performance during 2019/20, 2020/21 and beyond. This included consideration of the
following:Loss of income on a service by service basis, due to temporary closures, reduction in demand, and
increased collection losses.
Additional expenditure on a service by service basis, e.g. provision of new and expanded services
in response to the crisis (such as additional costs relating to temporary accommodation for the
homeless), and additional costs associated with changes to working practices (such as remote
working).
Changes to government policy, e.g. changes to business rate reliefs, guidance on supplier relief,
additional funding for local authorities, and additional responsibilities which sit alongside this.
The impact on the Council’s capital programme, e.g. delays caused by government restrictions, and
whether there is a need to rephase work for other reasons.
The impact on the Council’s subsidiaries and joint ventures.
The impact of all of the above on the Council’s cash flow and treasury management, including
availability of liquid cash (as at June 2020 the Council has around £94m short term investments),
impact on investment returns, and availability of external borrowing if required.

Page 23

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 8

Narrative Statement
The estimated overall impact on the Council’s General Fund and reserves.
This review has highlighted that COVID-19 poses a significant financial challenge for the Council, as
it will for all local authorities. To reflect this, the Council will publish an update to its Medium Term
Financial Strategy in autumn 2020.
Based on the Council’s assessment dated 14 July 2020, the net total impact of COVID-19 on the
General Fund is currently estimated to be a reduction of £1.03 million, the vast majority of which is
expected to crystallise within 2020/21. This is assuming no extra funding not already announced
from central Government, no re-prioritisation of services or alternative service provision. By way of
context, the General Fund balance as at 31 March 2020 is £2.0 million (subject to year-end
adjustments and audit). The Council’s prudent minimum balance on the General Fund is £2.0 million.
In addition the Council has an Economic Impact reserve which has a balance of £2.9 million at 31
March 2020 and it is expected that the financial implications will be met from this reserve
It is therefore noted that there is significant headroom within the General Fund to absorb the
estimated financial impact of COVID-19 in the short to medium-term. Furthermore, the Code requires
that local authorities prepare their accounts on a going concern basis, as they can only be
discontinued under statutory prescription. For these reasons, the Council does not consider that
there is material uncertainty in respect of its ability to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable
future.
9

Future challenges

General
The future for local government funding remains very uncertain, with no information available on
funding from April 2020 onwards. In setting out its medium term financial strategy (MTFS) the Council
has assumed reductions in government funding.
The budget strategy is intended to ensure that the Council has a balanced and sustainable budget
that provides the financial resources needed to implement its key priorities. The items set out below
are considered the main issues that will have an impact on the Council’s budget strategy and
financial planning in the medium term.
Covid 19
On 23 March the government imposed a lockdown on the whole population, restricting all nonessential travel and contact with people outside of the home and closed almost all businesses,
venues and facilities. As a result the Council is working closely with central government, related
agencies, the voluntary sector, town and parish councils and the health service to support
businesses and residents.
Business rates relief and grants for businesses in the retail, hospitality and leisure sectors have been
administered in line with government guidelines helping nearly 883 businesses in the district.
Additional council tax relief has been given to recipients of council tax support through the
government’s hardship fund.
A community hub was set up in collaboration with partners and volunteers to support vulnerable
residents, ensuring food and other essential items were delivered to those with particular health
conditions. The Council has provided accommodation for all the district’s known rough sleepers and
continued to provide housing to others where its duty to do so had ceased.
It is anticipated that the pandemic will have a significant impact on the council’s ability to collect
income, both from taxpayers and services such as car parking and planning, as well as from property
rents.
There are also additional cost pressures as the council responds to the outbreak and provides
support to the most vulnerable residents.

Page 24

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 9

Narrative Statement
There was little financial impact on the 2019/20 financial position as the pandemic was declared late
in March, but there will be significant challenges in the year ahead, and potentially future years as
Council deals with the ongoing crisis. Given the uncertainty around the full extent of the economic
impact at this stage, it is difficult to estimate with any confidence the likely impact on the Council’s
financial position. The Government has allocated emergency Covid-19 funding to local authorities
but this will not be sufficient to cover the estimated budget gap.
The Council has reviewed its budget for 2020/21 and the Council approved a revised budget on 14
July 2020. The report estimated that the shortfall for the year could be £1.03 million. It is
anticipated that this will be met from the Councils economic impact reserve. The Council will
receive an update on the Council’s financial position in the autumn. The Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS) will continue to be revised as the position evolves.
10 Basis of Preparation and Presentation
The external audit assessment of planning materiality is 2% of prior year gross revenue spend i.e.
£1.59m. Performance materiality has been set at £1.19m, which represents 75% of materiality and
is the amount used to determine the extent of audit procedures.
In addition our external auditors report to Committee all audit differences in excess of £79.3k.
All joint ventures are fully identified to EY who have assessed the details for materiality and inclusion
in the Group Accounts. These include the joint venture with Kier in the Watford Health Campus
Partnership at Riverwell, and the joint venture working with Watford Community Housing in Hart
Homes Watford on various housing schemes.
These accounts have been audited under instruction from EY and are added in the Group Accounts
as necessary.

Page 25

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 10

Annual Governance Statement
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY
1. Watford Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted
for. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard
to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
2. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
3. Watford Borough Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/Solace Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government’. It is also in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit
(England & Wales) Regulations 2015.
4. This Governance Statement explains how the Council has maintained sound governance during
the financial year 2019/20 and also how the Council meets the requirements of regulation 6(1)
of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
5. The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2020
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and statement of accounts. It comprises the
systems and processes as well as the culture and values, by which the Council is directed and
controlled and through which accounts to, engages with and leads the community.
6. The governance framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate and
cost-effective services.
7. The system of internal control is a significant part of this framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. However, it cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims
and objectives and, therefore, can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness.
8. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.

THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
9. The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s governance
arrangements, as per the CIPFA ‘Delivering good governance in local government: Framework
– Addendum’ include the following:

26
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 11

Annual Governance Statement
General
10. Watford Borough Council operates an elected Mayor and Cabinet model of governance under
the Local Government Act 2000 and this places total responsibility for those functions designated
as Executive Functions into the hands of the directly elected Mayor. However full Council is
responsible for setting the Council's budget and agreeing the key policy framework. The Council
also has established an Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Financial Scrutiny Committee and
task groups to scrutinise the actions of the Mayor and Cabinet and assist with policy
development. In addition the Council has six further committees that cover non-executive
functions, these are; Licensing, Development Management, Audit, Functions, Standards and
Appointments. It also has a number of advisory member groups such as Major Projects Board,
Planning Advisory Group, Housing Advisory Group, the Health and Wellbeing Forum, the
Sustainability Forum, the Constitution Working Party and the Member Development Group.
11. Watford Borough Council has a directly elected Mayor, which means that the community elect
the person to lead the council at four yearly intervals. The Mayor is supported by a Cabinet that
plays a key role in determining the overall budget and policy framework of the Council. Each
member of the Cabinet (with one exception) has a portfolio for which they are responsible and
can make decisions within their area of responsibility.
12. The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures
that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to the local
community. Some of these procedures are required by law, whilst others are adopted by the
Council. The Constitution is reviewed annually and is available on the Council’s website and
intranet.
13. The Council has an approved Local Code of Governance, which sets out and describes its
commitment to good governance and identifies the arrangements that have been and will
continue to be made to ensure its ongoing effective implementation and application in all aspects
of the Council’s work. The Local Code of Governance is available on the Council’s website and
intranet.
14. The Council acknowledges its responsibility for internal control, and for ensuring that its systems
maintain the integrity of accounting records and safeguard its assets. These systems provide
reasonable assurance as to the reliability of financial information and to maintain proper control
over the income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the Council. However, no system of internal
control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
15. The Leadership Team is aware of the financial and other procedures and controls outlined in the
Constitution, and senior officers are required to sign a declaration of compliance, in the form of
a Management Assurance Statement at the end of each year. This evidences, amongst other
things, that their staff are aware of and consistently apply the requirements of the Constitution.
16. Elected Members as decision-makers have to declare conflicts of interest as and when they
occur, as well as when they are elected.

Strategic Aims and Objectives
17. The governance framework enables the Council’s key objectives as outlined in the 2019/20
Corporate Plan to be met and these can be summarised as follows:-

Page
27
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 12

Annual Governance Statement

Vision:
To create a bold and progressive future for Watford
Our Objectives:






Identify ways to manage the borough's housing needs;
Champion smart growth and economic prosperity;
Provide for our vulnerable and disadvantaged communities;
Deliver a digital Watford to empower our community;
Secure our own financial future.

18. Underpinning these overarching priorities are a series of measurable (SMART) objectives so that
every member of staff and our community can feel fully engaged in the process. The Council
also plays a major role in the Local Strategic Partnership, One Watford, which is made up of key
stakeholders such as Hertfordshire County Council, Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning
Group, the Watford BID, Watford and Three Rivers Trust, Watford Community Housing Trust,
and Hertfordshire Constabulary.
19. The Council’s major change and improvement programme (Watford 2020) is underway and is
about transforming how the Council operates, providing a digital infrastructure for the town to
provide local businesses with a competitive advantage and enhance the quality of life of
residents.

Decision Making Structures
20. At an Officer level, the Council has a Strategic Leadership Team made up of the Managing
Director and Group Heads of Service. The Council also has an Operational Leadership Team
comprising some Heads of Service. Financial control is primarily the responsibility of a shared

28
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 13

Annual Governance Statement
Director of Finance with neighbouring Three Rivers District Council. Both Strategic Leadership
Team and Operational Leadership Team meet monthly to review and progress the key objectives
of the Council. The Council also has a Programme Management Board made up of members of
Strategic Leadership Team to review all key council projects. The Council also has a 2020
Steering Group, made up of members of Strategic Leadership Team and the 2020 Programme
Manager, to track progress of the 2020 service transformation programme. Both of these also
meet monthly.
21. Overall financial control is monitored on a monthly basis by Strategic Leadership Team and the
Financial Scrutiny Committee, and quarterly by Cabinet. Budget preparation is influenced by the
Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which forecasts budget pressures and
available resources over a four-year period. This MTFS is reported quarterly to Cabinet and
Financial Scrutiny Committee where variations to the strategy are approved. The Council has
the ultimate responsibility for approving the annual budget. The final accounts at the end of a
financial year are subject to formal approval by the Audit Committee (but is also reported to
Cabinet and Financial Scrutiny Committee).

Constitution
22. The Council has a written constitution which identifies community focus, service delivery
arrangements, structures and processes, risk management, internal control arrangements and
standards of conduct. This sets out how the council takes decisions, roles and responsibilities of
members and officers, codes of conduct and procedure rules and also sets out the rights of
citizens.
23. The Council's Constitution is available to all on the Council's website.
24. There are regular meetings of the Council, Cabinet and other committees. Council, Cabinet and
committee / scrutiny meetings are open to the public and written reports are available to the
public through the council’s website. Information is only treated as confidential when it is
necessary to do so for legal / commercial reasons in accordance with the provisions of the Local
Government Act 1972.
25. The Council publishes its Corporate Plan annually, which sets out key service improvement
priorities for the medium term, with targets for performance and deadlines for achievement. This
has been informed by public consultation on a range of topics, particularly around priority setting,
and a detailed analysis of the Watford context based on information derived from sources such
as Census 2011 and the Indices of Multiple Deprivation. Progress on the Plan is reported to the
public through the Council’s magazine, About Watford, which is distributed to every household
in the Borough and is also available online.
26. Councillors are assisted in their policy and decision-making roles by the advice of staff with
suitable qualifications and experience, under the leadership of the Managing Director. All reports
requiring a decision from members include comments on financial, legal, equalities,
sustainability, community safety (as relevant) and other appropriate issues such as potential risks
to non-achievement, all of which ensures that comprehensive advice is provided prior to
decisions being taken.
27. The Constitution sets out an Officers' Code of Conduct, which includes: Disclosure of
Information, Political Neutrality, Potential Conflict of Interest Situation, Bribery, Corruption and
Fraud, Appointments and Other Employment Matters, Outside Commitments, Personal Interests,
Equality Issues, Information Security, Criminal Offences, Whistle blowing and Breaches of the
Code of Conduct.
28. The scrutiny function within a local authority provides a necessary check upon the role of Cabinet
and is a key component of corporate governance. At Watford it is co-ordinated through the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, which can review Cabinet decisions and service

Page
29
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 14

Annual Governance Statement
performance, including those of the Council’s outsourced services, it can also set up task groups
to look in depth at issues it wishes to scrutinise and it also scrutinises the Community Safety
Partnership. In addition, the Standards Committee considers member conduct and the Financial
Scrutiny Committee considers financial issues. Finally, the Audit Committee reviews the overall
governance arrangements including the service related control and risk management
environment. The Audit Committee also considers the response to Freedom of Information
requests, the Ombudsman’s annual report, risk management, Regulation of Investigatory
Powers Act as well as annual accounts and treasury management (investment) policies.
29. The Council’s protocols and procedures are reviewed and updated on a regular basis for
standing orders, financial regulations, a scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/
manuals clearly defining how decisions are taken and the process and controls required to
manage risks. Compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations is
achieved through a combination of training events, written policy and procedural documentation,
authorisation procedures, managerial supervision, review by internal and external audit and use
of the disciplinary procedure where appropriate.
30. Codes of Conduct defining the standards of behaviour for members, staff, partners and the
community have been developed and communicated and are available on the Council’s website.
These include:









Members Code of Conduct;
Code of Conduct for staff;
Anti fraud and corruption policy (including whistle blowing and anti bribery);
Money Laundering detection guidance;
Members and officer protocols;
Regular performance appraisals, linked to service and corporate objectives;
Service standards that define the behaviour of officers;
A Standards Committee which has a key role in promoting and maintaining high standards
of conduct for members;
 Officers are subject to the standards of any professional bodies to which they belong.
31. The Group Head of Democracy and Governance is the Council’s Monitoring Officer and duties
include: maintaining the Council’s Constitution; reporting on any potential or actual illegality or
maladministration; and giving advice to the Mayor and councillors on the Constitution or issues
of maladministration, financial impropriety or probity.
32. The Shared Director of Finance is the statutory Chief Finance Officer. Duties include: overall
responsibility for financial administration, reporting on any actual or potential instances of
illegality in expenditure, including unlawful loss or deficiency or illegal items of account, and
giving advice to the council on financial planning.

Data Quality and Risk Management
33. The need to develop policies and guidance on data quality and assurance is essential in order
to promote consistency and awareness across the organisation. To that end, the Council has a
senior member of staff who acts as the Senior Information Risk Officer. Guidance documents
include a Data Quality Policy, an Information Security Policy, a Data Asset Register and
management training modules, all of which are on the intranet.
34. The governance framework is dependent upon the underlying system of internal control which is
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. The Council’s approach to risk management is
governed by its Risk Management Strategy which is updated annually and approved by Strategic
Leadership Team and the Audit Committee. This Strategy underpins the Corporate Risk Register
which was updated and approved by the Audit Committee in December 2019 and covers major
issues that will affect the achievement of the council’s key objectives. The Corporate Risk
Register is at a strategic / high level and is complemented by detailed project and service area

30
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 15

Annual Governance Statement
registers. The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed quarterly by Strategic Leadership Team and
is reviewed annually by Audit Committee. It was last reviewed by Audit Committee in December
2019.
Business continuity and emergency planning are other key aspects within the corporate
governance framework. This is the responsibility of the Group Head of Transformation.
35. All committee reports contain a ‘risk implications’ section as an aid to decision taking. There is
however, a continued need to ensure an effective risk identification process occurs where the
Council has outsourced the provision of services to a private sector partner.
Shared Services with Three Rivers District Council
36. Watford Borough Council has been a leading authority in developing a shared service for
revenues, benefits, ICT, financial services, human resources, pest control and procurement with
Three Rivers District Council. Both councils also share the statutory post of Chief Financial
Officer (S151) - the Shared Director of Finance.
37. From April 2014, the Governance arrangements for shared services changed to a lead authority
model. Watford Borough Council are responsible for providing the services of ICT, human
resources, pest control and procurement whilst Three Rivers District Council are responsible for
providing financial services and revenues & benefits. An executive board of senior management
from both councils are responsible for these services. The role of the Board covers:








Monitoring performance and dealing with complaints from either authority;
Resolving conflicts between competing interests amongst the authorities;
Reviewing the governance arrangements;
Dealing with matters referred up to it by the Operations Board;
Having overall supervision of the Shared Service;
Receiving annual reports on each service within the shared service.

Community Engagement
38. Corporate governance includes informing our community of the plans and aspirations of the
council and is primarily communicated through its published Corporate Plan and the regular
editions of ‘About Watford’. The directly elected Mayor, Peter Taylor, takes the lead in ensuring
there is open and effective community leadership and provides a focal point for individuals,
communities, business and voluntary organisations to engage with the Council. The Mayor is
also the Chair of the Borough’s Local Strategic Partnership, One Watford, which continues to
lead on the successful delivery of the overall vision and objectives for the town and on effectively
integrating partnership working and delivery.
39. The Council has established twelve neighbourhood forums, which mirror the Borough’s ward
boundaries and each has a devolved budget of £3,000. These are organised and managed by
the relevant local councillors as part of their commitment to community leadership and
engagement.
40. The Council has established clear channels of communication with all sections of the community
and other stakeholders. It provides citizens and business' with information about the Council and
its spending through a leaflet that is distributed with Council Tax and Business rate bills and the
publication of a summary of its key financial information through the Council magazine ‘About
Watford’.
41. A range of consultation and engagement projects are undertaken annually. This includes a
regular ‘Community Survey’ with the Borough’s Citizens’ Panel and wider community, which
covers a range of areas relating to the Council's services and activities, including how it spends

Page
31
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 16

Annual Governance Statement
its money and prioritises areas for focus and improvement. The Citizens Panel is refreshed
regularly to ensure it is representative of the Watford community. Local residents are also invited
to attend the Mayor’s regular information seminars or Forums, which help build understanding
across a range of areas including Council finances and the implications for future service
delivery. The Watford Compact provides an agreement between the statutory and voluntary
sectors in Watford to clarify and strengthen their relationship and to achieve better outcomes for
individuals and for the Watford community.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
42. In accordance with recent external audit guidance, the review of the effectiveness of the
governance framework will focus upon significant weaknesses and the ‘big picture’. If issues
have not been highlighted, it is because current governance arrangements have proved fit for
purpose.
43. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the Council
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment,
the Annual Report of the Head of Assurance for the Shared Internal Audit Service and also by
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. The
Mayor and Portfolio Holders maintain a continuous review of the Council’s policies, activities and
performance of Officers both through regular reviews and on a day to day basis.

The Council
44. Council comprises 36 Members and an Elected Mayor. The main roles are:
 To set Watford Borough Council’s Budget and Policy Framework;
 To receive a report from the Mayor, which Councillors can then ask the questions related to
the report;
 To receive questions from the public, which are then debated by the Councillors;
 To receive petitions from the public, which are debated by the Councillors;
 To receive questions from Councillors with their response, these are not debated;
 To receive motions from Councillors, which are then debated;
 To consider any recommendations from Committees or Working Parties.
45. Council met five times during 2019/20 and agendas, reports and minutes are available on the
Council's website.

Cabinet
46. Cabinet comprises the Mayor and five members and makes decisions which are in line with the
Council’s overall policies and Budget. It is chaired by the Mayor and includes the Portfolio
Holders.
47. Each Member of Cabinet (with one exception) has responsibility for a range of Council functions,
known as a portfolio and each portfolio-holder is required to work closely with Directors and
Group Heads of Service and develop an in-depth knowledge of their portfolio area.
48. The dates of all cabinet meetings are pre-published and all decisions have been taken in public
apart from a small number of reports which were considered and determined after the press and
public has been lawfully excluded. Agendas, reports and minutes of the meetings are available
on the Council's website.
49. Cabinet met eight times during 2019/20.

The Review Committees

32
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 17

Annual Governance Statement
50. The Council has two review committees, Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Financial
Scrutiny Committee. Their role is to scrutinise the decisions and performance of Cabinet and the
Council as a whole.
51. Overview and Scrutiny Committee comprising nine members, is the over-arching scrutiny
committee for Watford Borough Council. Its work includes:
 Reviewing called in Executive decisions made by Cabinet, Portfolio Holders and Officers;
 Reviewing the Council’s performance measures;
 Monitoring the Executive decisions taken and the key decisions to be taken by Cabinet,
Portfolio Holders and Officers;
 Monitoring the progress of recommendations from previous scrutiny reviews;
 Setting up Task Groups to review suggested topics for scrutiny;
 Monitoring the progress of Task Groups and agreeing the final reports;
 Setting a rolling scrutiny work programme.
The committee met eight times in 2019/20.
52. Finance Scrutiny Committee comprises eight members and its work includes:








To examine the Medium Term Financial Plan;
To examine the budget strategy for the relevant financial year;
To review the service spending priorities for the relevant financial year;
To challenge, question and test those strategies and plans;
To examine the draft proposals for the following financial years budget;
To challenge if the proposals match the strategy and priorities;
To forward comments on the budget proposals to Cabinet in time for it’s January budget
meeting;

The Finance Scrutiny Committee met five times in 2019/20.

Member Panels
53. There have been a number of cross-party Member Panels and Task Groups to review and
monitor various areas of Council activity, e.g. Mental Health Task Group – to look at current
mental health provision in the borough and consider what more Watford Borough Council could
do to support those living with mental health difficulties; Watford Colosseum Task Group – to
review responses from private sector theatre operators about the future use of the venue
following refurbishment works (March to November 2021); Health Services for the Deaf Task
Group – to consider and facilitate a response to issues relating to the accessibility of health
services for those who are profoundly deaf or with severe hearing loss.

Standards Committee
54. The Standards Committee is set up as and when required to consider matters of Member
conduct. There was one meeting of this committee in 2019/20.

Members Remuneration
55. Members remuneration was reviewed in 2018 by an Independent Remuneration Panel, which
was made up of four independent members. The report and recommendations of the
Independent Remuneration Panel was approved by the Full Council as part of the Budget Council
meeting, details of which are available on the Council's website. The Panel recommend that with
effect from April 2019 the Basic Allowance should be linked to local government pay settlements
and increased accordingly.

Page
33
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 18

Annual Governance Statement
56. The Independent Remuneration Panel now sits on a quadrennial basis and is therefore next due
to meet in in 2022.

Senior Management
57. There are three Council Officers who have statutory appointments - the Managing Director's role
as the Head of Paid Service, the Shared Director of Finance's role as the Section 151 Officer
and the Group Head of Democracy & Governance as the Monitoring Officer.
58. Strategic Leadership Team comprises the three statutory appointments above, plus the following
officers: Group Head of Community and Environmental Services, Group Head of Corporate
Strategy & Communications, Group Head of Transformation, Group Head of Human Resources,
Group Head of Place, Head of Finance and Head of Revenues and Benefits. Strategic
Leadership Team meet every month. Operational Leadership Team comprises the Head of IT,
Head of Customer Services, Head of Legal Services, Finance Manager, Head of Transportation,
Head of Housing, Head of Parks and Culture, and HR Manager, it also meets monthly.

Performance Management
59. Performance management follows a ‘cascade’ principle. The Council approves its Corporate
Plan annually and highlights key aspirations and targets including a series of objectives to be
achieved in the year ahead. This Corporate Plan then cascades down to individual service plans,
which in turn translates into team and individual work plans. Performance is monitored regularly
by Leadership Team and through Heads of Service, Cabinet Members, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and Outsourced Services Scrutiny Panel. Performance reviews also include
consideration of complaints and progress against the Council’s equalities agenda.
60. The Council keeps residents and stakeholders informed of its progress through a publication
called ‘About Watford’ which is delivered to every household and covers key issues, events and
challenges. It also has a large social media following across Facebook, Twitter and Instagram
platforms which are becoming a significant channel for communicating and engaging with
residents.

Procurement
61. The Council aims to use its resources efficiently, effectively and economically.
62. The Council has a robust set of documentation to provide guidance and advice to Members and
officers to ensure that Procurement is carried out in an effective and ethical manner. This
documentation includes Contract Procedure Rules and a Contract Management Toolkit. These
documents are regularly reviewed to reflect changes in local requirements and EU policy and
legislation.

The Audit Committee
63. The Audit Committee comprises five members and met four times during 2019/20.
64. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are consistent with best practice. The Committee
approves the annual plan of internal audit and receives the quarterly and annual reports of the
Head of Assurance for the Shared Internal Audit Service. It approves the Statement of Accounts,
the annual governance statement and the review of the effectiveness of the internal audit system.
It receives reports on risk management and reviews the operation of treasury management. It
also received the annual letter from the Ombudsman and considers regular reports upon
Freedom of Information requests, risk management and the Regulation of Investigatory Powers
Act.

34
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 19

Annual Governance Statement
Internal Audit
65. Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective opinion to the
Council on its control environment - this comprises the systems of governance, internal control
and risk management - by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving the organisation's objectives.
66. The internal audit function is carried out, by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS), a local
internal audit partnership hosted by Hertfordshire County Council. This provides greater
independence and resilience and a positive step in improving governance. Internal Audit carry
out a programme of reviews during the year which are based upon a risk assessment including
fraud risk. The audit plan is approved by Audit Committee in March of the preceding year. As
part of these audits, any failures to comply with legislation, council policy and practice or best
practice guidance issued by a relevant body is identified and reported. Circulation of reports to
senior officers, reports to the Audit Committee and follow-up procedures ensure action is taken
on priority improvements. Progress on implementing internal audit recommendations is reported
in quarterly reviews to Audit Committee and to Leadership Team.
67. In line with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, an Annual Assurance Statement and Internal
Audit Report is compiled and presented to the first Audit Committee of each year, which:

 includes an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's
internal control environment.
 discloses any qualifications to that opinion, together with any reasons for the
qualification.
 draws attention to any issues which are judged particularly relevant to the preparation
of the Annual Governance Statement.
68. The SIAS Head of Assurance Annual Report is a key source document for the Council's Annual
Governance Statement. For 2019/20 this Report includes the following statements:



In our opinion the corporate governance and risk management framework
substantially complies with the best practice guidance on corporate governance
issued by CIPFA/SOLACE. This conclusion is based on the work undertaken by the
Council and reported in its Annual Governance Statement for 2019/20.
 A satisfactory assurance opinion is given on the adequacy and effectiveness of both
financial systems and non-financial systems in the internal control environment,
based on the internal audits completed in the year. The internal control framework is
largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some audit findings
related to the current arrangements. There are no qualifications to this assurance.

The Council's External Auditors
69. External auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, provide an external review function through the audit of
the annual accounts, assessment of value for money, certification of grant claims and the periodic
inspection of services such as revenues and benefits. The Annual Audit and Inspection Letter is
circulated to all Members and formally reported to Cabinet and the Audit Committee.
70. The Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 2018/19 was presented to the Audit Committee in July
2019 and the main conclusions for the year were:
 The 2018/19 accounts give a true and fair view of the Council's financial affairs and of the
income and expenditure recorded by the Council; and
 The Council made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2019.

Page
35
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 20

Annual Governance Statement
71. The Local Government contract for the Council was awarded to EY (Ernst & Young LLP)
following re-tendering by the Audit Commission ahead of its abolition in March 2015. In
December 2017 EY were appointed by PSAA as auditor for Watford Borough Council for 2018/19
onwards.

SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES
72. The ‘normal’ running of Council business has and can be controlled through the governance
framework detailed in this report. No significant governance issues have bene identified for
2019/20 and no outstanding matters were brought forward from 2018/19.
73. Coronavirus (COVID-19) – whilst the coronavirus is not a specific governance issue, the impact
of this national crisis does need to be noted. There has been some financial impact in 2019/20
on the management accounts for the year, with reduced income and additional expenditure,
however, the full financial impact of Coronavirus is not likely to be clear for some time yet and is
currently being closely monitored, including via regular returns to Government. In the short-term
there will be additional reporting to members and ongoing review of the budget position for
2020/21. To date Watford Borough Council has received a total of £1.159m of emergency
Government funding.

Certification Statement from the Elected Mayor and the Managing Director
74. We propose to take steps over the coming financial year to address the above matters to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We will also monitor the implementation of any audit
recommendations that arise during the course of the year.

Signed ___________________________

Date ______________

Peter Taylor - Mayor

Signed ___________________________

Date ______________

Donna Nolan - Managing Director

36
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 21

Core Financial Statements
CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXPLANATION OF CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Movement in Reserves (Page 23)
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council,
analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other reserves (unusable reserves). The (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services line shows the true and fair cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which
are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the
statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council tax setting. The
net (increase)/decrease before transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General
Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the
Council

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Page 24)
This statement shows the true and fair view of cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting policies, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.
Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations, and this may be different
from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement

Balance Sheet (Page 25)
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category are
usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The second
category of reserves is those that the Council is not able to use to provide services (unusable
reserves). This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the Revaluation Reserve) where amounts would only become available to provide
services if the assets are sold, and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement
in Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations'

Cash Flow Statement (Page 26)
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses the cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations
of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services
provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash
flows arising from finance activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers
of capital to (i.e. borrowing by) the Council

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page 37

Page - 22

Core Financial Statements
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

Page 38
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 23

Core Financial Statements
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Page 39
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 24

Core Financial Statements
BALANCE SHEET

Signed:
Alison Scott, CIPFA
Director of Finance

Signed:
Mark Hofman
Chairman of Audit Committee

Date: 31 August 2020

Date: 31 August 2020

Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20
40

Page - 25

Core Financial Statements
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Page
41
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 26

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting Policies - Single Entity and Group Accounts
1.01 General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2019/20 financial year
and its position at the year end of 31 March 2020. The Council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts by The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which require
these to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20
and the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2019/20 (SERCOP). SERCOP does not
prescribe guidance on the Statement of Accounts. This is provided by the Code, supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (and statutory guidance issued under
section 12 of the 2003 Act). The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts
is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current
assets and financial instruments. The Statement of Accounts has been prepared on a ‘going
concern basis.

1.02 Turnover (for Group Accounts)
Turnover in respect of property development is recognised on unconditional exchange of
contracts on disposals of finished developments.
Where construction of pre-sold developments is under-taken, the revenue and profits are
recognised in accordance with IFRIC 15. Revenue is determined by independently certified
milestones.

1.03 Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made
or received. In particular:

revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council



revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council



supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet

Page 42

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 27

Notes to the Core Financial Statements


expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made



interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument, rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract

Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised, but cash has not been received or paid,
a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may
not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the
income that might not be collected.

1.04 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in
three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. The
Council has no overdraft facility.

1.05 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates
and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other
events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period, as if the new policy had always been
applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. See Note 4 for an outline of
PPA's within this set of accounts.

1.06 Charges to Revenue for Long Term Assets
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record
the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:-

Page 43

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 28

Notes to the Core Financial Statements


depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service



revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off



amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses or amortisations. These entries are adjusted through the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

1.07 Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an
expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual
is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next
financial year. The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the following accounting
year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the
holiday absence occurs.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the Non-Distributed Costs line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably
committed to the termination of the employment of an officer, or group of officers, or making an
offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension
fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.
Post Employment Benefits

Page 44

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 29

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme,
administered by Hertfordshire County Council. The scheme provided defined benefits to
members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees who worked for the
Council. The schemes arrangements are summarised as follows:-

The Local Government Pension Scheme


the Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme



the liabilities of Hertfordshire County Council Pension Fund attributable to the Council are
included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e.
an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits
earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates, etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees



liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.3% (based
on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds);



the assets of Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) Pension Fund attributable to the Council
are included in the Balance Sheet at their bid value as required by International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 19. Full details of the assets held by the Fund are disclosed as part of the
Pension scheme disclosure.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:


current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this
year — allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services
for which the employees worked



past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions which relate
to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of NonDistributed Costs



interest cost — the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as
they move one year closer to being paid — debited to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement



expected return on assets — the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to
the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return credited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement



gains or losses on settlements and curtailments — the result of actions to relieve the Council
of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of
employees — debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed Costs

Page 45

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 30

Notes to the Core Financial Statements


actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions — credited to the Comprehensive income and
expenditure - Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure line and reversed through the
Movement in Reserves to the Pensions Reserve;



contributions paid to the HCC pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows, rather than as benefits earned by employees.
Discretionary Benefits
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

1.08 Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and
are carried at their amortised cost. The Council currently has no long-term external debt.
Financial Assets - Loans and Receivables
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects
the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. The
authority’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial
assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual
payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows
do not take the form of a basic debt instrument)
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Page 46

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 31

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of
the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial
assets held by the authority, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the
amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.
Expected Credit Loss Model
The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its material financial assets held at
amortised cost [or where relevant FVOCI], either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected
credit loss model also applies to material lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime
losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority.
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not
take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial
part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially
recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly
or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.
The Expected Credit Loss Model is not applied to debts related to Council Tax and Non
Domestic Rates.
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss (FVPL)
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as
they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.
The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:


instruments with quoted market prices –the market price



other instruments with fixed and determinable payments –discounted cash flow analysis.

1.09 Government Grants and Contributions

Page 47

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 32

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

the Council will comply with the conditions of the payment



the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by
the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to
the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution
is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation
and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

1.10 Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by
the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the
Council.
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the
Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being
able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as
attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase
(research expenditure cannot be capitalised).
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services.

Page 48

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 33

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value
of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice,
no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at
amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life
to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An
asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired
— any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an
intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts
Reserve.
Where there is intangible asset expenditure of an immaterial nature, the Council's policy is that
these be capitalised and then written off in-year.

1.11 Inventories and Long Term Contracts
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during
the financial year.

1.12 Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery
of services or production of goods or is held for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on
the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’slength. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions
at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation

Page 49

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 34

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact
on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve.

1.13 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific assets.
The Council as Lessee
Finance Leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at
the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present
value of the minimum lease payments). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the
obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount
of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Lease payments are apportioned between:

a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to
write down the lease liability; and



a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease
term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).
The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from
revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by

Page 50

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 35

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property,
plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if
this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the
commencement of the lease).
The Council as Lessor
Finance Leases
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
(i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a
lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:


a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease
debtor (together with any premiums received); and



finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received, the
element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor.
At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Page 51

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 36

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

1.14 Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are not charged to those service segments that
benefit from the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service
Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17 (SERCOP).
But the costs of overheads and support services are accounted for as separate headings in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

1.15 Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to
deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged
as an expense when it is incurred.
Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:


the purchase price

Page 52

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 37

Notes to the Core Financial Statements


any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of
the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.
It should be noted that at present the Council has no donated assets.
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:


Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical



All other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in
its existing use (Existing Use Value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as
a minimum every five years. In addition, should current valuations of a similar class of asset
suggest material differences in valuations, the entire class to which the asset belongs would be
revalued. The current valuers have undertaken a market review of individual asset types within
the Council's portfolio at year end to identify any material changes to the fair value of assets.
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
service.
When decreases in value are identified:

Page 53

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 38

Notes to the Core Financial Statements


where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains)



where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.
Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
When impairment losses are identified:


where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains)



where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

Buildings — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset as estimated by the valuer
- up to 70 years



Vehicles — straight-line over the estimated life of the asset - up to 20 years



Plant, furniture and equipment — straight-line over the estimated life of the asset - up to 20

Page 54

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 39

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
years


Infrastructure — straight-line over the estimated life of the asset - up to 25 years



Finance leases — over the life on the underlying asset or over the life of the lease where
there is no option to acquire the asset at the end of the lease.

Please note, to ensure consistency across the Councils policies, the previous accounting policy
of depreciating some plant, furniture and equipment has been changed from reducing balance
to straight-line. This now means all Councils assets if depreciated are depreciated based on a
straight-line basis. The impact was immaterial.
Depreciation commences in the year following acquisition.
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately, in
order to ensure the depreciation charge is realistic.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Disposals of Non-current Assets
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss
on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any
revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
Construction Contracts
Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet
date. This is normally measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be

Page 55

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 40

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.
Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred where it is probable they will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

1.16 Heritage Assets
Heritage Assets are held with the objective of increasing knowledge, understanding and the
appreciation of the Council's history and local area. Heritage Assets are recognised and
measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses) in accordance with the
Council's accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of the
measurement rules have been simplified in relation to heritage assets as detailed below.
The Heritage Assets are relatively static and acquisitions, donations and disposals are rare.
Where acquisitions do occur, they are initially recognised at cost and donations are recognised
at valuation ascertained by insurance officers, museum curators or external valuers. Proceeds
from the disposal of Heritage Assets are accounted for in accordance with the Council's general
policies relating to the disposals of property, plant and equipment. The Council has a rolling
programme of major repair and restoration of its heritage assets and therefore the assets are
deemed to have indefinite lives and the Council does not consider it necessary to charge
depreciation.
The Council's collection of Heritage Assets, which includes works of art, musical equipment,
sculptures, statues, war memorials and civic regalia, are reported at insurance valuations, which
are based on market values, internal or external valuations. These insurance valuations are
reviewed and updated on an annual basis. The carrying amounts of heritage assets are
reviewed where there is evidence of impairment or where an item has suffered physical
deterioration or breakage. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the
Council's general policy on impairment.

1.17 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For

Page 56

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 41

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making
of a settlement or the payment of compensation.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation,
and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower
settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant
service.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles
the obligation.
The level of provisions are reviewed annually by the Council.
Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.
Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential.

1.18 Reserves
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance

Page 57

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 42

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is
incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the
Council — these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

1.19 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where
the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources
or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there
is no impact on the level of council tax.

1.20 Value Added Tax (VAT)
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

1.21 Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other
organisations, that involve the use of assets and resources of the Council and organisations
without the establishment of a separate legal entity.
The Council recognises the assets and liabilities it controls on the Council's balance sheet.
Expenditure incurred by the Council and income it earns from the operation is included in the
Council's CI&E.
Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant or equipment that are jointly controlled by
the Council and other organisations. The assets being used to obtain benefit to the Council and
organisations. The arrangement does not involve the formation of a legal entity.
The Council accounts for only its share of jointly controlled assets, liabilities and expenses
incurred in respect of its interest in the arrangement.
An agreement exists between Dacorum Borough Council, Hertsmere Borough Council, St
Albans City & District Council, Three Rivers District Council and Watford Borough Council to
constitute a West Herts Crematorium Joint Committee under the Local Government Act 2000.

Page 58

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 43

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
The Joint Committee has one member from each of the constituent Councils. One Watford
Councillor represents the Council on the Joint Committee. The Council's Managing Director is
the Clerk to the Joint Committee. Three Rivers District Council provide the Treasurer.

1.22 Single Entity Financial Statements
The financial statements presented by a parent, an investor in an associate or a venturer in a
joint venture (jointly controlled entity) in which the investments are accounted for on the basis of
the direct equity interest (i.e. at cost) rather than on the basis of the reported results and net
assets of the investees. In the context of the Code, an Authority’s single entity financial
statements are deemed to be separate financial statements.

1.23 Group Accounts - Recognition of Group Entities and Basis of Consolidation
Group Accounts are the financial statements of an entity together with:

its subsidiary undertakings,



its investments in associates, and



its interests in joint ventures (jointly controlled entities); presented as a single economic
entity.

Subsidiary undertakings are accounted for in accordance with the implementation of IAS27
(International Accounting Standard 27) in the 2019/20 Code. The 2019/20 Code requires
consolidation of subsidiaries. Consolidation is a method of accounting whereby an entity
combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line by adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, reserves, income and expenses. In order that the
consolidated financial statements present financial information about the group as that of a
single economic entity, the following steps are then taken:

the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of
reserves of each subsidiary are eliminated;



any non-controlling interest is identified and separately disclosed;



intragroup balances and transactions, including income, expenses and dividends, are
eliminated in full.

Investments in associates are accounted for in accordance with the implementation of IAS28 in
the Code. The Code requires the consolidation of an entity's interest in associates. Joint
ventures are accounted for in accordance with the implementation of IFRS 11 in the Code. The
Code requires use of the "equity method" of accounting whereby the investment is initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the investor's share
of the net assets of the investee. The profit or loss of the investor includes the investor's share
of the profit or loss of the investee.
Taxation (for Group Accounts)

Page 59

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 44

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Taxation on all profits is solely the personal liability of individual members. Consequently neither
taxation nor related deferred taxation arising in respect of Watford Health Campus Partnership
LLP are accounted for in these financial statements.
Subscription and Repayment of Members’ Capital (for Group Accounts)
The capital requirements of the LLP are reviewed from time to time by the Board and further
capital contributions may be made at the discretion of the members. No interest is charged on
capital except pursuant to a dissolution, no capital can be withdrawn by a member unless agreed
by all members.

Allocation of Profits and Drawings (for Group Accounts)
The allocation of profits to those who were members during the financial period occurs following
the finalisation of the annual financial statements.
The allocation of profits between members is determined by entitlements outlined in the
Members’ Agreement and is dependent on certain profit criteria being achieved. In accordance
with the SORP as a consequence of the LLPs profits being automatically divided in line with the
entitlements outlined in the Members’ Agreement these profits are treated as an expense in the
profit and loss account.
Work in progress (for Group Accounts)
Development land and work in progress is included at cost less any losses foreseen in
completing and disposing of the development less any amounts received or receivable as
progress payments or part disposals. Where a property is being developed, cost includes cost
of acquisition and development to date, including directly attributable fees, expenses and
finance charges net of rental or other income attributable to the development. Where
development property is not being actively developed, net rental income and finance costs are
taken to the profit and loss account.

1.24 Fair Value
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and investment
properties, at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:


In the principal market for the asset or liability, or



In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

Page 60

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 45

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability (assuming those market participants
were acting in their economic best interest).
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use
or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Council uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use
of relevant known data and minimising the use of estimates or unknowns. This takes into
account the three levels of categories for inputs to valuations for fair value assets:


Level 1 – quoted prices,



Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly,



2

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

The Council is required to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting change that
will be required by a new standard that has been issued, but has not yet been adopted by the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.
For 2019/20 the following accounting standard changes that need to be reported relate to:

3



IFRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases
on their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities (there
is recognition for low-value and short-term leases). CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred
implementation of IFRS16 for local government to 1 April 2021.



IAS 19 Employee Benefits will require the re-measurement of net pension asset/liability
following plan amendments, curtailments or settlements to be used to determine
current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the year after the change to
the plan. The updating of these assumptions only applies to changes from 1st April 2020
and, since this could result in positive, negative or no movement in the net pension
liability, no prediction can be made of the possible accounting impact.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Council has to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgement in the Statements of Accounts is the level of uncertainty about future levels of
funding for local government. However, the Council has planned to make savings to compensate for
reductions in funding. These savings will result predominantly from efficiencies and not reduced level
of services, so the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to provide an indication

Page 61

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 46

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
that the assets of the Council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce
levels of service provision.
The Council has a well-established shared service arrangement with Three Rivers District Council
for ICT, HR, Finance and Revenues & Benefits services. These working arrangements and future
related changes will not reduce the level of service provided by the Council. Therefore the council
believe that it is not necessary to impair any non-current assets in light of this arrangement.

4

Prior Period Adjustments

No prior period adjustments have been done in the accounts.

5

Events after the Balance Sheet date

There are no known events that would have material impact on the Council’s position as at 31 March
2020. However, the understanding of how the Covid-19 pandemic has affected services and
valuations will continue during 2020/21 and may see significant changes to balances in accounts for
that year. The draft Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Section 151 Officer on
31 August 2020.
Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where
events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2020,
the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect
the impact of this information.

Page 62

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 47

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

6

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Uncertainty

The Statements of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the future that are otherwise uncertain.
Estimates are made taking in to account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.
The Items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2020 for which there is significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as
follows:

Page 63

Item
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
(PPE)

Pensions Liability

Uncertainties
Impact
Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation
about the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to increases and the carrying amount of the assets
the individual assets. The current economic climate makes it possible that the falls.
Council will be unable to sustain its current spending on repairs and
maintenance, bringing in to doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to: the discount rate used; the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase; changes in the retirement ages; mortality rates; and
expected returns on pension assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged
to provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied

The effects of these individual assumptions can
have a major impact on the pension liability
calculation. During 2019/20, The Council’s actuaries
advised that the net pension’s liability had
decreased by £21.3m as a result of estimates and
assumptions being updated.

The ongoing impact of the Covid19 pandemic has created uncertainty
surrounding illiquid asset values. As such, the Pension Fund property and
infrastructure allocations as at 31 March 2020 are difficult to value according
to preferred accounting policy.

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 48

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Arrears

Domestic Rates
Appeals Provision

Fair Value
Estimations

At 31 March 2020, the Council had a short term sundry debtor balance of
£16,135k. A review of significant balances suggested a provision for bad debts
of £5,494k was appropriate. However, in the current economic climate it is not
certain that such an allowance would be sufficient. See Note 27.

If collection rates were to deteriorate an increasing
level of doubtful debts would require an additional
amount to be put aside as a bad debt provision for
additional bad debt write offs.

The economic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has made the estimation of
debt impairment more difficult as there is more uncertainty about the economic
viability of debtors and hence their ability to settle their debts.
The provision for NDR Appeals includes an assessment of the appeals lodged If NDR appeals were to significantly increase, the
to 31st March 2020, plus an estimate of the appeals not yet lodged.
provision would have to be reassessed and
increased. The increased liability would be shared
between the Council, Central Government and
County Council.

Page 64

When the fair values of Investment Properties, Surplus Assets and Assets
Held for Sale cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets
(i.e. Level 1 inputs), their fair value is measured using the following valuation
techniques: For Level 2 inputs, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets at the balance sheet date; For level 3 inputs, valuations based
on: - Most recent valuations adjusted to current valuation by the use of
indexation and impairment review. Where possible, the inputs to these
valuation techniques are based on observable data, but where this is not
possible, judgment is required in establishing fair values. These judgments
typically include considerations such as uncertainty and risk. Changes in
assumptions used could affect the fair value of The Council’s assets and
liabilities.Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the authority employs RICS
(Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors) qualified valuers to identify the most
appropriate valuation techniques to determine fair value.All valuations are
carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set
out in the RICS professional standards. The Council’s valuation experts work
closely with finance officers reporting directly to the chief financial officer on a
regular basis regarding all valuation matters.

The Council uses combination of indexation
techniques, beacon valuations and discounted cash
flow (DCF) models to measure the fair value of its
Investment Properties, Surplus Assets and Assets
Held for Sale under IFRS13, depending on which
technique it considers most appropriate.The
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement include management assumptions
regarding rent growth, occupancy levels, floor area
repairs backlogs, beacon classifications and others.

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 49

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
7(a) Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Page 65
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 50

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
7(b) Note to Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Page 66
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 51

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
8

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

Page
67
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 52

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

68
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 53

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
9

Other Operating Income and Expenditure

10 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

11 Taxation and Non Specific Grant Incomes

Page
69
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 54

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
12 Expenditure and Income analysed by Nature

70
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 55

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
13 Grant Income

14 Joint Operations
The Council is party to the West Herts Crematorium Joint Committee under the Local Government
Act 2000, as disclosed at note 19.

Page
71
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 56

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
15 External Audit Costs
The council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts,
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections for 2018/19 and 2019/20 by Ernst & Young.

16 Members Allowances
The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 provide for the
circumstances in which allowances are payable to members and the maximum amounts payable in
respect of certain allowances. The total of Members’ Allowances paid in the year was £477k
(2018/19: £485k).
Further information on Members’ Allowances can be obtained from the Council’s Democratic
Services section.

72
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 57

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
17 Officers' Remunerations
The Council is required to disclose the number of employees in the accounting period whose
remuneration fell in each bracket of a scale in multiples of £5,000, starting with £50,000. For
completeness, the Council has included the senior officers’ remuneration (excluding pensions) from
the second table of this note, in the first table of this note, detailed below:-

The Director of Finance is the statutory Chief Finance officer (S151) and is a shared post with Three
Rivers District Council (TRDC) who under the lead authority model pick up the costs of this post
which is recharged to Watford Borough Council on a 50:50 basis. The full cost is shown in the TRDC
accounts.

Page
73
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 58

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
The following tables provide additional detail for senior officers’ remuneration where salary for the
establishment post falls between £50,000 and £150,000.

During the financial year, there was a restructure in senior management team. No bonuses were
given during either period.

74
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 59

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
18 Termination Benefits
The Council terminated the contracts of 10 employees in 2019/20, incurring liabilities of £309,197
(2018/19: £101,155). Of this total, £196,687 (2018/19: £90,091) was payable in the form of
compensation for loss of office and £112,510 (2018/19: nil payment) in enhanced pension benefits
as part of the Council's rationalisation of Services.

19 Related Party Transactions
This disclosure note has been prepared using specific declarations obtained in respect of related
party transactions from Members and Senior Officers. The Council is required to disclose material
transactions with related parties - bodies and individuals that have the potential to control or influence
the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council.
Details of grant funding transactions with government departments and agencies are set out in Note
9 to the Core Financial Statements. The Council also paid precepts to Hertfordshire County Council,
Hertfordshire Police Authority and Parish Council's with which details can be found in the Collection
Fund Accounts.
Members and Senior Officers Information gathered through declarations provided by both members
and officers alike has been tabulated below:

Name

Role

Position

Name of Entity

Details

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Derek
Scudder

Councillor

Representative

Bedford Morison
& Cordery
Almshouse
Charity

Tim William

Councillor

Representative

Board of
Watford
Workshop

Page
75
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 60

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Councillor

Governor

Chessbrook
ESC

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Pater Taylor

Mayor

Declaration of
Interest

East of England
LGA

Routine
business
transactions with regard
invoicing Watford Borough
Council for services supplied

Stephen
Bolton

Councillor

Representative

Groundwork
East

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Alan Gough

Head of Community
& Customer Services

Director

Alison Scott

Head of
Finance/Director of
Finance

Director

Hart Homes LLP

Council has a 50% stake

Jo Wagstaffe

Director of Finance

Board Member

Rabi Martins

Councillor

Representative

Hertfordshire
Police & Crime
Panel

No transactions identified
between Council & Entity

Mark Watkin

Hertfordshire
Sustainability
Forum

Tim Williams

Peter Taylor

Councillor

Mayor

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Representative

Declaration of
Interest

Hertfordshire
Waste
Management
Group

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Herts Leaders
Group

Routine transactions with
regard invoicing

LGA Eastern
Region Local
Government
Conference

No transactions identified
between Council & Entity

LGA General
Assembly

No transactions identified
between Council & Entity

76
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 61

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Mark Watkin
Councillor

Representative

Rabi Martins

LGIU

No transactions identified
between Council & Entity

Val Mirugan
Hindu Temple
Trust

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business
Husband undertakes
consultancy work for
Watford Borough Council to
the amount of roughly
£6,500

Kathryn
Robson

Group Head of
Corporate Strategy
and Communications

Declaration of
Interest

Veolia

Manny Lewis

Managing Director

Board Member

Watford BID

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Councillor

Board Member

Watford Citizens
Advice Bureau

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Head of Community
& Customer Services

Director
Watford
Commercial
Services Ltd

Wholly owned subsidiary of
Council

Watford
Community
Housing

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Stephen
Bolton

Alan Gough

Alison Scott

Head of
Finance/Director of
Finance

Director

Peter Jeffree

Councillor

Board Member

Jo Wagstaffe

Director of Finance
Board Member

Alison Scott

Watford Health
Campus
Partnership LLP

Head of
Finance/Director of
Finance

Page
77
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Set up in 2013, the Council
is in partnership with Kier
Property Investment Ltd in a
LABV (Local Asset Backed
Vehicle). This is developing
a large site next to Watford
hospital which has many
complex issues to resolve

Page - 62

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
and will take well over a
decade to complete all
aspects.
The Council’s
financial input relates to
providing land and equity
(Loan Notes A). The equity
required varies between
years in line with the needs
of the developments within
the overall scheme.
In
2018/19 the net equity at the
year-end was £7,078m
including accrued interest.

Manny Lewis

Managing Director

Karen Collett

Councillor

Director

Tim Williams

Councillor

Representative

Stephen
Bolton

Councillor

Representative

Derek
Scudder

Councillor

Representative

Jo Wagstaffe

Director of Finance

Honorary
Treasurer

Karen Collett

Councillor

Watford Palace
Theatre

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

Wellspring
Church

Occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

West Herts

An Agreement existing
between neighbouring
authorities (Hertsmere, St
Albans, Dacorum, Three
Rivers & Watford) to
constitute a Joint
Committee under the Local
Government Act 2000. In
2019/20, Watford received a
contribution of £50,000
(2018/19 £50,000)

Board Member
Crematorium

Manny Lewis

Derek
Scudder

Managing Director

Clerk

Representative
Councillor

West Herts Golf
Club
Consultative
Committee

Rent Received from West
Herts Golf Club of £70,000
per annum (2018/19
£70,000) as well as
occasional transactions in
the normal course of
business

20 Partnership Working

78
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 63

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

21 Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Movement of Property, Plant and Equipment

During the financial year, the Council acquired Croxley Business Park on finance lease for
£236.9m for a duration of 40 years.

Page
79
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 64

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(b) Revaluations
The Council carried out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment
required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. Valuations are carried out
internally and the basis of valuations is in accordance with the methodologies and bases for
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. All
assets have been valued individually, with the final statements of account reconciled to the valuation
certificates. The basis of valuing individual classes of assets owned by the Council is detailed in Note
1 to the Core Financial Statements.
The following table illustrates the scope of the revaluation work undertaken and demonstrates the
Council’s rolling revaluation programme. The Council undertakes an impairment review at the year
end and any asset which has had a material gain or loss in value during the year is adjusted.

80
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 65

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Therefore,

the

Council

believes

that

the prior

year

valuations

are still

appropriate.

(c) Information About Depreciation Methodologies
Depreciation has been provided for all assets with a finite useful life. The basis for depreciating
assets is detailed in the Statement of Accounting Policies (Note 1.15). Depreciation commences in
the year following acquisition. Freehold land, Investment Properties, Assets under construction,
Surplus Assets and Heritage Assets are not depreciated.

22 Heritage Assets
The Council's Heritage Assets are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuations which are
based on market values. These insurance values are reviewed and updated as part of the rolling
five year plan. The Council has a rolling programme of repair and restoration of it heritage assets
and regularly reviews the conditions of its assets. The Council keeps a register of all its Heritage
Assets and records the nature, condition and location of each asset.

Page
81
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 66

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

23 Investment Properties and Surplus Assets
(a) Movement of Investment Properties and Surplus Assets

82
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 67

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Fair Value Hierarchy
All the Council’s investment property portfolio has been assessed as Level 2 for valuation purposes
(see Note 1 for explanation of fair value levels).
Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment Properties
The fair value of investment property has been measured using the Investment Method of
Valuation. The valuers have used a desktop valuation relying on data provided by Avison Young,
the Council’s managing agents. Valuations have taken account of the following factors: existing
lease terms and rentals taken from the tenancy schedule, independent research into market
evidence including Market rentals and yields, and then adjusted to reflect the nature of each
business tenancy or void and the covenant strength for existing tenants.
Valuers
The investment property portfolio has been valued at 31 March 2020 in accordance with the
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal
Institution for Chartered Surveyors. The assets were valued by Avison Young, the Council’s
valuing agents.

(b) Accounted for in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Page
83
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 68

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
There are no restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment
property or on the Council's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The
Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or
repairs, maintenance or enhancement.

24 Capital Expenditure, Financing and Commitments
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together
with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in
future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an
increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred
historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this
note.

At 31 March 2020 the Council had contractual commitments totalling £22.781m (31 March 2019:
£11.543m)

84
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 69

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
25 Leases
Operating Leases – The council as Lessor
The Council leases out property under operational leases.
The future minimum leases payments receivable are:

26 Debtors & Investments - Long Term
Long-term debtors are debtors which fall due after a period of at least one year. Long-term
investments include investments in the Watford Health Campus scheme. They are analysed as
follows:

Page
85
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 70

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
27 Debtors - Short Term
An analysis of debtors falling due within one year is shown below:

28 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

Short term deposits include £92m received in advance as part of acquiring Croxley Business Park
on finance lease. The money will be used for planned capital maintenance and to cover revenue
shortfall over the lease period.

29 Cash Flow Statement- Operating, Investing and Financing Activities
The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash
movements and investing and financing activities:

86
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 71

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

30 Creditors - Short Term
An analysis of creditors falling due within one year is shown below:

Page
87
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 72

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

31 Creditors - Long Term
An analysis of creditors falling due in one year or more is shown below:

Deferred liabilities include the acquisition of Croxley Business Park under finance lease.
Capital grants receipts in advance includes £68m for Croxley Business Park for planned capital
maintenance throughout the life of the lease.
Receipts in advance includes £24m received for Croxley Business Park as a contribution of future
rent shortfall.

32 Provisions
Provisions are accumulated funds held where the Council has an obligation which is likely to lead to
a payment but the exact amount and timing of the payment is unknown.

88
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 73

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Property Searches
The Council is a defendant in proceedings brought by a group of property Search Companies for
refunds of fees paid to the Council to access land charges data. It is possible that additional claimants
may come forward to submit claims for refunds, but none have been initiated as present.
Municipal Mutual Insurance
Under Watford Borough Council’s agreement with its previous insurer Municipal Mutual Insurance
(MMI), the Council is exposed to the possibility of having to repay all or part of its claims already
settled, or to be settled, by MMI. The Council believes the provision of £48k is prudent.
Contractual Provision
This provision reflects a potential liability for the Council on one of its contracted services.
NDR Appeals
The NNDR Appeals provision has arisen because of the change to the NNDR regime. All business
premises can appeal their valuation, set by the Valuation Office, which is used for setting the level
of rates payable. Until the appeal is heard and decided a provision is estimated to cover the likely
outcome.

33 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
Participation in Pension Scheme
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable
until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and
to disclose them at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.
The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered locally by
Hertfordshire County Council. This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the
Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pensions liabilities with investment assets. The pension scheme is operated under the regulatory
framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme and the governance of the scheme is the
responsibility of the Pensions Committee of HCC. Policy is determined in accordance with the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. The investment managers of the fund are
appointed by the Investment sub-committee of HCC and consist of the fifteen Investment Fund
Managers.
Principal risks of the scheme for the Council are longevity assumptions, statutory and structural
scheme changes, changes to inflation, bond yields and performance of the scheme’s equity
investments. The Council has taken into account the impact of the McCloud Judgement and the
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions equalisation on future liabilities arising from the defined benefit
pension scheme.

Transactions relating to Retirement Benefits
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge that is required to be made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so
the real cost of post-employment / retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the

Page
89
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 74

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account and the General Fund Balance via the Movement
in Reserves Statement during the year:-

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council's obligation in respect of its
defined benefit plans is as follows:

90
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 75

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

Page
91
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 76

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised

92
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 77

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary levels, etc.
The Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an
independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the County Council Fund being based on the latest full
valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2019.
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in
the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each
change that the assumption analysed changes whilst all the other assumptions remain constant. The
assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men
and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be
interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the
scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the
previous period.

Page
93
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 78

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Information about the Defined benefit obligation
Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis, and the latest triennial review is based on 31
March 2019 data. The fund liability may go up or down based on this review, and a sensitivity analysis
is set out within this note under “impact on the defined benefit obligation in the scheme”. The total
value of contributions expected to be made by the Council in 2020/21 is £3.753m.

34 Contingent Assets and Liabilities
There are no material contingent assets and liabilities at 31 March 2020

35 Usable Reserves
(a) Movement in Usable Reserves
Details of the movements relating to individual usable reserves are shown below:

(b) Capital Receipts Reserve
The Usable Capital Receipts Reserve holds capital receipts from the sale of assets which have been
received and have not yet been used to finance capital expenditure. The balance on the Reserve is
restricted by statute from being used other than to fund future years’ expenditure in the approved
capital budget or set aside to finance historical capital expenditure.

94
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 79

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(c) Earmarked Reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Funding earmarked reserves to provide
financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to
meet General Fund expenditure in 2019/20.
For each Reserve established the Council identifies:
 the reason/purpose of the reserve
 how and when the reserve can be used
 procedures for the management and control of the reserve
 a process and timescale for review to ensure continuing relevance and adequacy

Page
95
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 80

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

96
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 81

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Details of the purpose of each current earmarked reserve are set out below:
Reserve

Purpose

Area Based Grant Reserve

This grant was received to encourage initiatives relating to
preventing violent extremism and anti-social behaviour.

Budget Carry Forward Reserve

This reserve has been created to ‘carry forward’ unspent
revenue budgets for use in the proceeding financial year.

Capital Fund Reserve

To provide for funding of key capital projects.

Car Parking Zone Reserve

This is a statutory ring-fenced reserve, for future controlled
parking related costs.

Charter Place Tenants Reserve

Tenants’ contributions to meet major works.

Climate Change Reserve

To fund energy
consumption.

Crematorium Reserve

To fund future repairs and maintenance.

Croxley Park Reserve

To provide resources to offset the impact of reduced income
over the life of the finance lease.

Development Sites
Decontamination Reserve

Provide for the costs of any decontamination of development
sites for which the Council may have liability.

Economic Impact Reserve

Grounds Maintenance Reserve
High Street Innovation Reserve

saving

initiatives

to

reduce

energy

To provide resources to offset the impact of the potential
downturn of the economy and consequent potential
overspends to the Council's budget.
To provide for the commuted sum for ground maintenance,
tree works and legal and surveyor costs owed to Taylor
Wimpey that relate to POS transfer, Hopwood Close
To assist with regeneration of Town Centres.

Homelessness Prevention
Reserve

To assist with homelessness among young people.

Housing Benefit Subsidy
Reserve

This reserve has been created to meet any subsidy clawback
by DWP.

Housing Planning Delivery
Grant Reserve

This grant was introduced to reward authorities for improved
delivery of housing and other planning outcomes.

Invest to Save Reserve

To support schemes where initial expenditure will produce
longer term savings.

LA Business Growth Incentive
Reserve

Government grant received in respect of business rate growth.

Le Marie Centre Repairs
Reserve

To help meet the Council’s obligation as landlord.

Leisure Structural Maintenance
Reserve

To fund future structural maintenance needs not covered
within the existing Leisure services contract.

Local Development Framework
Reserve

To help fund the costs of the production of the Local
Development Plan.

Multi Storey Car Park Repair
Reserve

To provide funds towards major structural works.

New Homes Bonus Reserve

Government grant received in respect of new homes built.

NNDR Collection Fund Reserve

Equalisation fund to support the NNDR Collection Fund
variation.

Parks, Waste & Street Strategy
Reserve

To support the Council's parks, waste and street cleansing
strategy.

Page
97
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 82

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Pension Funding Reserve

To meet one off pension costs and redundancy programme.

Performance Reward Grant
Reserve

This is grant allocated for use in conjunction with the LSP,
based on the achievement of performance targets.

Projects and Programme Mgmnt
Reserve

This supports the Council's major project programme

Rent Deposit Guarantee
Scheme Reserve

To assist in the provision of homelessness accommodation.

Riverwell Reserve

To cover guarantees provided by the Council for the Riverwell
scheme, to cover repayments of outstanding loans, to
replenish balances and create a fund for future investment

Vehicle Replacement Reserve

To provide for the replacement of the Council's refuse
freighters.

Weekly Collection Support
Grant Reserve

Grant received to support the weekly domestic waste
collection.

(d) General Fund Reserves
The General Fund balance are resources available to meet future running costs. The unallocated
accumulated balances on the General Fund is set out below:

(e) Capital Grant Unapplied
The Capital Grant Unapplied Reserve is the resources available to meet future grant funded
projects. The unallocated of resources held are set out below:

98
Watford Borough Council – Draft StatementPage
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 83

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
36 Unusable Reserve
(a) Movement in Unusable Reserves
Details of the movements relating to individual unusable reserves are shown below:

(b) Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from different arrangements
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition,
construction or additions of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the
cost of acquisition, construction or subsequent costs as depreciation, impairment losses and
amortisation are charged to the CI&ES (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to
convert current and fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the
amount set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and subsequent
costs.
The Account contains accumulated gains/losses on Investment Properties.
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on PPE before 1 April 2007, the date the
Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
The MIRS provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account apart from
those involving the Revaluation Reserve

Page
99
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 84

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(c) Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of
council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as it falls due from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the
statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.
For further details see the Collection Fund Notes within the supplementary financial statements.

Page
100
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 85

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(d) Deferred Capital Payments
Deferred capital payments are amounts representing capital payments from the purchase of longterm assets that will be paid by the Council in instalments over an agreed number of years.

(e) Deferred Capital Receipts
The Deferred Capital receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current
assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the
Authority does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are
backed by capital receipts. When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.
Deferred capital receipts are amounts representing capital receipts from the sale of long-term assets
that will be repaid to the Council in instalments over an agreed number of years. They have arisen
from loans to community groups, which forms part of long term debtors.

Page
101
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 86

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
(f) Pension Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employments benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the CI&ES as the benefits are
earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liability recognised to reflect inflation,
charging assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.
However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes
employers contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pension for which it is directly
responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in
the benefits earned by past and current employees and resources the Council has set aside to meet
them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

(g) Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value
of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains
are:




revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation
disposed of and the gains are realised

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance
on the Capital Adjustment Account.

Page
102
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 87

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

37 Disclosure of Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments – Balances
The Balance Sheet includes the following financial instruments:

Page
103
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 88

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
Fair Value
Long term debtors comprise mortgages and finance leases. Short term creditors and debtors arise
from charges to and from the Council for goods and services, and short term investments are those
made in cash for less than twelve months. These instruments are carried on the balance sheet at
amortised cost, which represents their fair value.
The Council has a 125 year loan to the Y.M.C.A. in respect of accommodation at less than market
rate (soft loan). The interest foregone over the life of the loan is recognised in the Financial
Instruments Adjustment Account on the Balance Sheet. Interest of £1,000 (2018/19: £1,000) is
recorded as a gain in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account and reflected as a
reduction in the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account.
Key Risks
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key risks are:





Credit risk:
the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council
Liquidity risk: the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments
Re-financing risk: the possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a financial
instrument at disadvantageous interest rates or terms
Market risk: the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rates movements

Overall procedures for managing risk
The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets,
and are structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk
management are set out through a legal framework in the Local Government Act 2003 and
associated regulations. These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and Investment Guidance
issued through the Act. Overall, these procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following
ways:






by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice
by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its
financial regulations/standing orders/constitution
by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three
years limiting:
- the Council’s overall borrowing
- its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates
- its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt
- its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year
by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both
investing and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with the Government
Guidance

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the annual meeting where the Council
agrees its budget and sets the council tax, or before the start of the year to which they relate. These
items are reported with the annual treasury management strategy which outlines the detailed
approach to managing risk in relation to the Council’s financial instrument exposure. Actual
performance is also reported after each year, as is a mid-year update.
The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets,
and are structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk
management are set out through a legal framework in the Local Government Act 2003 and

Page
104
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 89

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
associated regulations. These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and Investment Guidance
issued through the Act. Overall, these procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following
ways:
The annual treasury management strategy which incorporates the prudential indicators was
approved by the Council on 29th January 2019 and is available on the Council website. The key
issues within the strategy were:
 the Authorised Limit for 2019/20 was set at £55 million (2018/19: £30 million). This is the
maximum limit of external borrowings or other long term liabilities
 the Operational Boundary was expected to be £40 million (2018/19: £25 million). This is the
expected level of debt and other long term liabilities during the year
These policies are implemented by a central treasury team. The Council maintains written principles
for overall risk management, as well as written policies (Treasury Management Practices – TMPs)
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash.
These TMPs are a requirement of the Code of Practice and are reviewed periodically.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
the Council’s customers.
This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not
made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance
with the Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment
Strategy also considers maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each financial institution.
Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum
requirements of the investment criteria outlined above. Details of the Investment Strategy for
2019/20, which was approved by the Council on 29th January 2019, can be found on the Council’s
website.
One long-standing investment for £2m, which met the criteria when placed, does not meet the
Council's current criteria. However, because it was placed to support local businesses, its continuing
use as a counterparty has been approved by Leadership Team.
The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building
societies cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments
or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown
that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies
to all of the Council’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2020 that this was likely
to crystallise.
No breaches of the Council’s counterparty criteria occurred during the reporting period and the
Council does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of it’s counterparties in relation to
deposits.
Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors, and individual credit limits are set where appropriate.
Liquidity risk
The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the
setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy
reports), as well as through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the
CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks to ensure that cash is available when needed.

Page
105
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 90

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any day to day cash
flow need. It currently has no longer term borrowing requirements. The Council is also required to
provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures
sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it
will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.
The Council does not generally allow credit for its trade debtors, such that £1.307 million (2018/19
£0.787 million) of the £11.671 million (2018/19: £10.325 million) balance is past its due date for
payment. The past due amount can be analysed by age as follows:

Refinancing and Maturity risk
The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on
investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address
this risk. The Council's approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the
central treasury team address the operational risks within the approved parameters. This includes
monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the
Council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability of
maturities and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs.
The Council maintains a significant investment portfolio and currently has no long-term debt
outstanding. The longer-term risk to the Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing its
investments as they mature.
The maturity analysis of the Council's investments at 31 March 2020 is as follows:-

Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury
Management Strategy draws together the Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its
expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this
Strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate
exposure. The central treasury team will monitor market and forecast interest rates within the year
to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where
economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods
to secure better long term returns.

Page
106
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 91

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect
would be:

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements
being reversed.
Price Risk
The Council has no shareholdings that might expose it to this kind of risk.
The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no
exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

Page
107
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 92

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
COLLECTION FUND
This account reflects the statutory requirement for the Council, as the billing authority, to establish
and maintain a separate fund for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (Business Rates).

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page 108

Page - 93

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND
CF1 Council Tax Payers
The charge for council tax is based on the total number of dwellings in each of eight bands at 1 April
1991 valuations. This is adjusted for dwellings where discounts or exemptions apply and is converted
into an “equivalent number of Band D dwellings” where bands below Band D will pay proportionately
less than dwellings in higher bands. A further adjustment is made for losses on collection and
contributions in lieu of tax in respect of certain government properties. The table below sets out the
calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2019/20.

Each year, the Council needs to collect enough money from local residents to cover the cost of the
services it provides which is not funded by government grants and charges for services. It also
collects charges for Hertfordshire County Council and the Hertfordshire Police. The total is divided
by the tax base for the purposes of calculating the council tax to arrive at an average Band D tax per
dwelling. The Council set an average council tax charge for Band D dwellings of £1,816.17
(£1,746.92 for 2018/19).

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page 109

Page - 94

CF2 Business Rate Payers
In line with the Local Government Act 2003, from 1 April 2005, all business premises are subject to
a tax known as National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR). The tax is calculated using local rateable
values which are then multiplied by a uniform rate.
The relevant rateable value and multiplier data is shown below:

Small Business Rate Relief came into effect on 1 April 2005. It is generally available to ratepayers
who have only one business property with a rateable value of less than £18,000.
Until 31 March 2013, the Council was responsible for collecting the total amount of NNDR payable,
less certain reliefs and other deductions, and paying this into a national pool managed by central
government who then re-distributed the pool back to local authorities based on a standard amount
per head of the local adult population.

From 1 April 2013, the Hertfordshire County Council share, the Borough share and the Central
Government share (after allowable deductions) are paid direct from the Collection Fund.

Page
110
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 95

This page is left intentionally blank

Page
111
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 96

GROUP ACCOUNTS

DRAFT
GROUP ACCOUNTS
2019/20

Watford Riverwell is the brand logo for Watford Health Partnership LLP (WHCP)

Page
112
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 97

GROUP ACCOUNTS
GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

Page 113
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 98

GROUP ACCOUNTS
GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Page
114
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 99

GROUP ACCOUNTS
GROUP BALANCE SHEET

During the financial year, the Council acquired Croxley Business Park on finance lease for 40 years
at a cost of £237m which is reflected in Property, Plant and Equipment and the corresponding liability
under the Long Term Creditors. The Council received £92m in advance for planned capital
programme and rent shortfall over the lease period.

Signed:
Alison Scott, CPFA
Director of Finance
Signed:
Mark Hofman
Chairman of Audit Committee

Date: 31 August 2020

Date: 31 August 2020

Page
115
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 100

GROUP ACCOUNTS
GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

As part of the Croxley Business Park acquisition, the Council received £68m in advance for planned
capital programme and £24m for rent shortfall over the duration of the finance lease. This is
reflected in the net increase in cash and cash equivalents of £97,832.

Page
116
Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement
of Accounts
2019/20

Page - 101

NOTES TO GROUP ACCOUNTS
NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
1. The Group Accounting Policies
The Group Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting 2019/20 using the equity method for Joint Ventures under International
Accounting Standard 28, Interests in Joint Ventures, and using the line-by-line consolidation method
for subsidiaries under International Accounting Standard 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements. There are no material subsidiaries or associated organisations excluded from the Group
Accounts. There are no material differences in the accounting policies of the Council or any of the
companies or organisations forming part of the Group Accounts.
Cross references to notes on the single entity accounts are to be used for material balances on the
group accounts.

2. Watford Borough Council’s Share of Joint Venture Company within the Group
Joint Ventures
Watford Health Campus Partnership
LLP (WHCP)
Hart Homes (Watford) Limited

Share of
Other Stakeholder
Ownership
50%
Kier Property
Investment
50%
Watford Community
Housing Trust

Date
Incorporated
18 June 2013
24 June 2016

Watford Borough Council has 100% ownership in Watford Commercial Services Limited (net assets
not material as at 31 March 2020) which in turn has 50% ownership in Hart Homes Watford
Development LLP (net liabilities of £147k as at 31 March 2020) and part of joint committee with
Wests Herts Crematorium as at 31 March 2020. The aggregate net assets of these companies is
not material, and therefore has not been consolidated as part of the group accounts.

Page 117

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 102

NOTES TO GROUP ACCOUNTS
The table below shows 50% share for Watford Borough Council.

3. Related Party Transactions
During the Period, there were no transactions between WHCP and the three related parties; Kier
Project Investments, Kier Project Development, and Watford Borough Council.

Page 118

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 103

NOTES TO GROUP ACCOUNTS
4. WHCP Members’ Capital Contributions (Loan Notes)

Interest of £0.518m has been accrued in respect of the total contributions by Watford Borough
Council.
Grant and interest free loans
The project has a committed grant of £9.0m from West Hertfordshire Hospital Trust (WHHT) which
has been used to fund part of the development of infrastructure, including construction of road and
a bridge.

Page 119

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 104

GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS
GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Accounting Period
The period of time covered by the accounts, normally a period of 12 months commencing on 1 April.
The end of the accounting period is the Balance Sheet date.
Accruals
Sums included in the final accounts of the Council to cover income or expenditure attributable to the
accounting period for which payment has not been received/made in the financial year. Local
authorities accrue for both revenue and capital expenditure.
Amortisation
The term used to refer to the charging of the value of a transaction or asset (usually related to
intangible Long Term Assets) to the Income and Expenditure Account over a period of time, reflecting
the value to the Council; similar to the depreciation charge for tangible Long Term Assets.
Billing Authority
A local authority responsible for collecting Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates.
Capital Expenditure
Spending which produces or enhances an asset, like land, buildings, roads, vehicles, plant and
machinery, and intangible assets such as computer software. Definitions are set out in Section 40 of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. Any expenditure which does not fall within the
definition must be charged to a revenue account.
Capital Receipts
The proceeds from the sale of Long Term Assets such as land and buildings. Capital receipts can
be used to repay any outstanding debt on Long Term Assets or to finance new capital expenditure,
within rules set down by government. Capital receipts cannot, however, be used to finance revenue
expenditure.
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
The professional accountancy body concerned with local authorities and the public sector.
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code)
The annual Code of Practice, produced by CIPFA, which specifies the principles and practices of
accounting required to give a 'true and fair' view of the financial position and transactions of a Local
Authority.
Collection Fund
The Collection Fund is a statutory fund set up under the provisions of the Local Government Finance
Act 1988. It includes the transactions of the charging Authority in relation to Non-Domestic Rates
and Council Tax, and illustrates the way in which the fund balance is distributed to preceptors and
the General Fund.
Contingent Assets/Liabilities
Potential gains and losses for which a future event will establish whether a liability exists and for
which it is inappropriate to set up a debtor or provision in the accounts.
Depreciation
The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful life of a Long Term
Asset.
Earmarked Reserves
These are funds set aside for a specific purpose, or a particular service, or type of expenditure.
Finance Lease
Arrangement whereby the lessee is treated as the owner of the leased asset, and is required to
include such assets within Long Term Assets on the balance sheet.

Page 120

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 105

GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS)
A statement of accounting practice issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
Group Accounts
Group Accounts are prepared using consistent accounting policies which will require authorities to
align their financial statements more closely with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Watford Borough Council has not used acquisitions or mergers accounting methodologies following
consideration of the level of involvement with companies, voluntary organisations and other public
bodies to determine if there is a requirement to undertake group accounts. There are no subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.
Heritage Assets
Heritage Assets are held with the objective of increasing knowledge, understanding and the
appreciation of the Council's history and local area.
IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standards.
Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or
production of goods or is held for sale.
Investments
Deposits for with approved institutions.
Infrastructure Assets
Expenditure on works of construction or improvement but which have no tangible value, such as
construction of, or improvement to, highways.
Long Term Assets – Tangible
Tangible assets (i.e. land and buildings) that yield benefits to the Council and the services it provides
for a period of more than one year.
Long Term Assets – Intangible
Assets which are of benefit to the organisation, but have no physical presence such as software
licences.
Long Term Debtors
Amounts due to the Council more than one year after the Balance Sheet date.
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)
Under the arrangements for uniform business rates, which came into effect on 1 April 1990, the
Council collected Non-Domestic Rates for its area based on local rateable values, multiplied by
nationally set rates. The total amount, less certain reliefs and deductions, was paid to a central pool
managed by the Government, which in turn, paid back to Authorities their share of the pool based
on a standard amount per head of the local adult population.
New arrangements for the distribution of NNDR came into force on 1 April 2013.
Operational Assets
Long Term Assets held by the Council and used or consumed in the delivery of its services.
Operating Lease
An arrangement whereby the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset remain with the
leasing company.
Pension Fund

Page 121

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 106

GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS
An employees’ pension fund maintained by an authority, or a group of authorities, in order primarily
to make pension payments on retirement of participants. It is financed from contributions from the
employing authority, the employee and investment income.
Precept
The amount by which a Precepting Authority (e.g. a County Council) requires from a Billing Authority
(e.g. a District Council) to meet its expenditure requirements.
Profit on the Sale of Long Term Assets
The book value of an asset sold is compared to the net proceeds to calculate the profit or loss on
the transaction.
Provisions
Sums set aside to meet future expenditure where a specific liability is known to exist but cannot be
measured accurately.
Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute
Capital expenditure which is allowable by statute to be funded from capital resources but which does
not fall within the Code of Practice definition of Long Term Assets. Examples include grants and
similar advances made to other parties to finance capital investment.
Revenue Support Grant
This funding is a Government Grant provided by the Department for Communities and Local
Government (DCLG), which is based on the Government’s assessment as to what should be spent
on local services. The amount provided by the DCLG is fixed at the beginning of each financial year.
Surplus Assets
Long Term Assets held by an organisation but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the
delivery of services, or held as an investment.

Page 122

Watford Borough Council – Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20

Page - 107

Agenda Item 6

Watford Borough Council
Audit Committee Progress Report
17 September 2020
Recommendation
Members are recommended to:
 Note the Internal Audit Progress Report for
the period to 4 September 2020
 Agree the change to the implementation
date for 2 recommendations (paragraph
2.5) for the reasons set out in Appendix C
 Agree removal of implemented audit
recommendations (Appendix C)
 Note the status of the audit
recommendations from the Hertfordshire
Home Improvement Agency audit
(Appendix D)

Page 123

Contents
1

Introduction and Background
1.1 Purpose
1.2 Background

2

Audit Plan Update
2.1 Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings
2.3 Status of Audit Recommendations
2.8 Proposed Audit Plan amendments
2.9 Performance Management

Appendices
A
B
C
D

Progress against the 2020/21 Audit Plan
2020/21 Audit Plan Projected Start Dates
Progress against outstanding Internal Audit
recommendations
Status of outstanding High and Medium priority
recommendations from the Hertfordshire Home
Improvement Agency audit

Page 124

1. Introduction and Background
Purpose of Report
1.1

This report details:
a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in
delivering the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2020/21 as at 4
September 2020.
b) Proposed amendments to the approved 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan.
c) Implementation status of all outstanding previously agreed audit
recommendations from 2016/17 onwards.
d) An update on performance management information as at 4
September 2020.

Background
1.2

The work of internal audit is required to be reported to a Member Body
so that the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an
essential component of corporate governance and gain assurance that
its internal audit provision is fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is
considered good practice that progress reports also include proposed
amendments to the agreed annual audit plan.

1.3

The 2020/21 Annual Audit Plan was approved by Audit Committee on
12 March 2020.

1.4

The Audit Committee receives periodic updates on progress against
the Annual Audit Plan from SIAS, the most recent of which was brought
to this Committee on 30 July 2020.

2. Audit Plan Update
Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings
2.1

As at 4 September 2020, 17% of the 2020/21 Audit Plan days had
been delivered for the combined WBC and Shared Services plans
(calculation excludes ‘To Be Allocated’ days). Appendix A provides a
status update on each individual deliverable within the audit plan.

2.2

No 2020/21 audit reports have yet been finalised.

Status of Audit Recommendations
2.3

Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has
been agreed by management and includes an agreement to implement
the recommendations made. It is SIAS’s responsibility to bring to
Members’ attention the implementation status of all audit

Page 125

recommendations. It is the responsibility of officers to implement
recommendations by the agreed date.
2.4

The table below summarises progress in implementation of all
outstanding internal audit recommendations as at August 2020, with full
details given in Appendix C:

Year

2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2.5

Recommendations Implemented Not Outstanding
made
yet & request made
No.
due for extended
time or no
update received
35
34
0
1
29
29
0
0
30
28
1
1
24
11
2
11

Percentage
implemented
%

97%
100%
93%
46%

Since July 2020 Audit Committee, extension to implementation dates
have been requested by action owners for two recommendations as
follows:
a) Two from the 2019/20 Development Management (pre-app process)
audit.

2.6

In respect of nine recommendations, no progress update was received
from action owners as follows:
a) One from the 2016/17 Trees audit,
b) Seven from the 2019/20 Play Safety Inspections audit, and
c) One from the 2019/20 Debtors audit.

2.7

Hertfordshire County Council lead on the implementation of the
Hertfordshire Home Improvement Agency audit recommendations and
as a contributing partner, an update on the status of the outstanding
recommendations is brought before this committee. A follow-up of the
recommendations made in the original report commenced in February
2020 and completion of this work was delayed in view of the impact of
COVID-19. The final report was, however, issued in August and
concluded that thirteen of the original eighteen recommendations have
been fully implemented, with the remaining five still in progress. Details
are included in Appendix D.

Proposed Audit Plan Amendments
2.8

There are no changes to the 2020/21 WBC or Shared Services Audit
Plans to bring before this meeting of Audit Committee.

Performance Management
Reporting of Audit Plan Delivery Progress

Page 126

2.9

To help the Committee assess the current situation in terms of
progress against the projects in the 2020/21 Audit Plan, we have
provided an analysis of agreed start dates at Appendix B. These dates
have been agreed with management and resources allocated
accordingly.

2.10 Annual performance indicators and associated targets were approved
by the SIAS Board in March 2020. Actual performance for Watford
Borough Council against the targets that can be monitored for 2020/21
is shown in the table below.
Performance Indicator

Annual
Target

Profiled
Actual to 4
Target to 4 September
September 2020
2020
19%
17%
(45/241
(40/241
days)
days)

1. Planned Days –
percentage of actual billable
days against planned
chargeable days completed
(excluding unused
contingency).

95%

2. Planned Projects –
percentage of actual
completed projects to draft
report stage against planned
completed projects.

95%

0%
(0/20
projects to
draft)

0%
(0/20
projects to
draft)

3. Client Satisfaction –
percentage of client
satisfaction questionnaires
returned at ‘satisfactory’ level.

100%

100%

N/A
(none
received)

4. Number of Critical / High
Priority Audit
Recommendations agreed

95%

95%

N/A
(None yet
made in
2020/21)

2.11 In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature.
Performance against these targets will be reported on in the 2020/21
Head of Assurance’s Annual Report:


5. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting
of each Audit Committee. If there is no March meeting, then the plan
should be prepared for the first meeting of the civic year.

 6. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the Audit
Committee’s first meeting of the civic year.

Page 127

APPENDIX A - PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN AT 4 SEPTEMBER 2020
2020/21 SIAS Audit Plan
AUDITABLE AREA

LEVEL OF
ASSURANCE

RECS
C

H

M

L

AUDIT
PLAN
DAYS

LEAD
BILLABLE DAYS
AUDITOR
COMPLETED
ASSIGNED

STATUS/COMMENT

Key Financial Systems

Page 128

Benefits (shared services plan)
Budget Monitoring (shared services
plan)
Council Tax (shared services plan)
Creditors (shared services plan)
Debtors (shared services plan)
Main Accounting (shared services
plan)
NDR (shared services plan)
Payroll (shared services plan)
Revenues and Benefits Parameter
Testing (shared services plan)
Treasury Management (shared
services plan)

-

-

-

-

-

12

Yes

0

6

Yes

0

10
9
10

Yes
Yes
Yes

0
0
0

8

Yes

0

10
12

Yes
Yes

0
0

0

-

0

6

Yes

Cancelled

0

Operational Audits
Revenues and Benefits Payments
(shared services plan)
Climate Change
Communications (including social
media)
Customer Services - Digitalisation
Freedom of Information

10

Yes

1

In Planning

7

BDO

0

8

Yes

4

In Fieldwork

12
8

BDO
Yes

5
0

In Fieldwork

APPENDIX A - PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN AT 4 SEPTEMBER 2020

AUDITABLE AREA

LEVEL OF
ASSURANCE

RECS
C

H

M

L

Neighbourhood Forums
Parking Contract
Section 106
Sports Development

AUDIT
PLAN
DAYS

LEAD
BILLABLE DAYS
AUDITOR
COMPLETED
ASSIGNED

5
7
10
8

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

0
0
0.5
0

8
0

Yes
-

0
0

12

BDO

0

0

-

0

STATUS/COMMENT

In Planning

Contract Management, Project
Management & Procurement
SLM Subsidy Payments
Veolia Contract Payments

-

-

-

-

-

Cancelled

IT Audits

Page 129

Cyber Security (shared services
plan)
IT Policies and Procedures (shared
services plan)

-

-

-

-

-

Cancelled

Shared Learning / Joint Reviews
Joint Reviews
Shared Learning

2
3

0
0

2

0

10

5

Ad Hoc Advice
Ad Hoc Advice
Follow Ups
Follow up of Audit
Recommendations

Through Year

APPENDIX A - PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN AT 4 SEPTEMBER 2020

AUDITABLE AREA

LEVEL OF
ASSURANCE

RECS
C

H

M

L

AUDIT
PLAN
DAYS

LEAD
BILLABLE DAYS
AUDITOR
COMPLETED
ASSIGNED

STATUS/COMMENT

To Be Allocated
Unused Contingency
(shared services plan)

0

0

7
3
10
1
3
10
3

0
3
4
0.5
3
3
3

9

8

WBC TOTAL

131

35

SHARED SERVICES TOTAL

110

5

COMBINED TOTAL

241

40

Strategic Support

Page 130

2021/22 Audit Planning
Annual Governance Statement
Audit Committee
External Audit Liaison
Head of Audit Opinion 2019/20
Monitoring & Client Meetings
SIAS Development

Complete
Through Year
Complete
Through Year
Complete

Completion of 2019/20 audits
Time required to complete work
commenced in 2019/20 (5 days
shared plan; 4 days WBC)

Key to recommendation priority levels:
C = Critical; H = High; M = Medium; L = Low / Advisory.

In Progress

APPENDIX B – 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN PROJECTED START DATES
Apr

May

June

July

August

September

Revenues and Benefits
Payments
(shared services plan)

NDR
(shared services plan)

In Planning

Communications
In Fieldwork

Page 131

Customer Services –
Digitalisation
In Fieldwork

APPENDIX B – 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN PROJECTED START DATES
October

November

December

January

February

Debtors
(shared services plan)

Council Tax
(shared services plan)

Benefits
(shared services plan)

Main Accounting
(shared services plan)

Budget Monitoring
(shared services plan)

Section 106

Payroll
(shared services plan)

Creditors
(shared services plan)

Treasury Management
(shared services plan)

Neighbourhood
Forums

Sports Development

FOI

Climate Change

Parking

Cyber Security
(shared services plan)

In Planning

SLM Subsidy
Payments

March

Page 132

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020

Audit Plan 2016/17
Tree Surveying 2016/17
Final report issued April 2017
Ref No.
01

Recommendation
We recommend that during the review
process to finalise the Woodland and
Tree Strategy, the Council ensures
that the strategy addresses the
following:
a)

Page 133

Measurement of the aims and
objectives contained within the
strategy;
b) Frequency of inspections to be
completed, both routine and
high risk trees; and
Detail of the maintenance
programmes to be adopted.

Priority
Merits
Attention

Action to Date
The strategy is meant to be an overview of
trees and woodlands and intended to take a
more strategic overview of tree and woodland
management in the Borough. However, what
this has raised is that the specification in the
Parks and Open Spaces contract
documentation, detailing what is required of
Veolia does not cover enough detail in relation
to planned maintenance and there is a clear
emphasis on reactive management rather than
proactive management. A review of the
specification needs to be undertaken and
ensure that the Strategy is aligned with this.
Position – June 2017
As above.
Position – September 2017
As above but delayed due to Cassiobury Park
operational issues.
Position – November 2017
No update received.
Position – February 2018
The overarching Green Spaces Strategy is
currently being reviewed as part of the Local
Plan 2 work and this has the wider view of
Trees and Woodlands. An action plan will be
updated within this to ensure trees, woodlands
and biodiversity are included and the need to
update the Tree and Woodland Strategy. This
will eventually be approved by PFH or Cabinet.
Position – July 2018
The review of the Green Spaces Strategy is
still underway and is tied up with the Local

Responsibility
Section Head
Parks, Open
Spaces and
Projects

Deadline
30 September
2017 and to be
presented to
Strategic
Partnership
Board.

Resolved
 or 


Revised
Deadline
31
December
2017
31 May
2018
31 July
2019
30 Sept
2019
31 January
2020
31 March
2020

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Tree Surveying 2016/17
Final report issued April 2017
Ref No.

Recommendation

Priority

Action to Date
Plan 2 amends. The extension for the Veolia
Contract is now currently being negotiated and
this will be an opportune time to a) amend and
agree the strategy and b) update the
specification.
Position – September 2018 / November 2018 /
February 2019
In progress.
Position – July 2019
The Tree and Woodland Strategy has been
completed and is due at Cabinet in September
2019 and highlights a number of actions within.

Page 134

Position – September 2019
As above.
Position – November 2019
The strategy is out for consultation and will go
to Cabinet when that is completed. This may
be either December or January.
Position – February 2020
The Tree and Woodland Strategy is complete
along with the review of the Green Spaces
Strategy and is on the Agenda for March 2020
Cabinet for adoption.
Position – July 2020
No update provided.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020

Audit Plan 2018/19
Cyber Security 2018/19
Final report issued January 2019
Ref No.
02

Recommendation
There should be a mechanism to
restrict any non-complying devices to
connect to the Council's IT network.

Additionally, there should be
continuous monitoring in place for all
devices connected on the network to
be fully antivirus protected.

Priority
Medium

Action to Date
Review current AV and VPN solution and
viability to restrict devices with no up to date
protection from connecting to the network fully.
Ensure that daily reports for AV protection are
monitored against asset register and this is
reported to the ICT Section Head.

Page 135

Position – February 2019
Reporting mechanism from Infrastructure
monitoring through to desktop services is in
place. Mechanism to ensure that desktop
services remediate the gaps sufficiently is
currently underway.
Replacement VPN, for all homeworking, is
within scope for replacement Wide Area
Network. New VPN solution will review ability
to ensure that all connected devices have up
to date AV.
Position – July 2019
The following management update was
received on 30 July:
‘’Continuous AV monitoring in place. Daily
reports reviewed to ensure all connected
devices have the most recent signatures.
Where the signature has not been applied this
is flagged and remediated by an engineer.
New remote working solution has AV checker
within Enterprise Management module.
Request to extend the new remote working
solution roll out to December 2019. The rollout
will have commenced in August 2019 but
needs to be deployed to all users across all
sites, in line with the deployment of new

Responsibility
ICT Section
Head

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

30 September
2019
Part
resolved.
Extension
requested
to deploy
new
remote
working
solution.

Revised
Deadline
31
December
2019
31 January
2020
31 May
2020
31
December
2020

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Cyber Security 2018/19
Final report issued January 2019
Ref No.

Recommendation

Priority

Action to Date
personal IT kit and Unified Communications.’’
Position – September 2019
As above
Position – November 2019
This is in progress, and a key
issue/dependency resolved. Slight delay in roll
out means that this is likely to completed midend of January 2020.

Page 136

Position – February 2020
The solution is ready to deploy. This has been
tested. The deployment has been paused due
to the coronavirus outbreak. Migration to a new
home working solution during a period where
there is a high possibility of large-scale home
working required has meant a decision to
pause.
I have made a request to extend to the end of
May to accommodate other business risk also,
elections and revenues and benefits year end
processing.
Position – July 2020
Request made to extend the deployment to
December 2020. The deployment has been
delayed due to ongoing COVID work and the
requirement to continue to maintain and
support all Officers to work from home. Partial
deployment in place, approx. 70 staff are using
the new solution, but this solution is now being
reviewed with reference to the likely increase
on an ongoing basis of an increasing volume
of remote working.
Position – September 2020
Review of product undertaken. Transition
to new product underway.

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020

Benefits 2018/19
Final report issued April 2019
Ref No.
02

Recommendation
We recommend that testing of the
module is carried out to reinstate the
ability to delete obsolete data.

Priority
Medium

Action to Date
The Retention and Destruction module is
currently suspended from use as it has been
destroying documents incorrectly that we are
still relying on to support ‘live’ housing benefit
claims.
We have reported this to the system supplier
(Northgate) and have requested their
assistance with correcting the issue so that we
can start using the module again and remain
GDPR compliant.

Page 137

During a meeting with Northgate on 21.03.19
we agreed we needed a Retention &
Destruction refresher training day during which
they would help us set up the system so that
the system does not destroy documents we
still need. We are now awaiting a date for the
training to take place.
Position – July 2019
No management update received.
Position – 21 August 2019
The system is designed to destroy all
documents that are older than 6 years plus
current. We discovered that the system was
not working properly and has destroyed some
documents that are still required to support live
Benefit claims and therefore we need to retain.
Clearly we could not allow that to continue so
the system was been suspended. We have
sought advice on how to fix this issue from the
system provider and are awaiting their
response. I have chased this today and have
also now asked if it’s possible to use the
system in part so that we can carry on
destroying old documents that we no longer
require for Council Tax and Business Rates

Responsibility
Benefits
Manager

Deadline
31 May 2019

Resolved
 or 


Revised
Deadline
31 October
2019
30 June
2020
30 Sept
2020

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Benefits 2018/19
Final report issued April 2019
Ref No.

Recommendation

Priority

Action to Date
and unsuspend the Benefits part of the system
once we have fixed the problem. I will escalate
this issue in a week if I have not had a
response.
Position – September 2019 (Based on
conversation with the Head of Revenues &
Benefits)
Issue has now been escalated with Northgate.
Position – November 2019
No update provided by management.

Page 138

Position – February 2020
The Northgate system is currently being
upgraded. The upgrade is now available in test
and the live upgrade is due to take place 1st
and 2nd May 2020. We will test this module of
the system as part of the overall testing. If this
module works, we will be able to run scripts
which will ‘back archive’ documents that would
have been due to be archived since it was
discovered the system was not working
properly.
Position – July 2020
The required Northgate system upgrade was
due to be live now but has been delayed as a
result of COVID-19. Northgate have currently
rescheduled the upgrade for 8-9 September
2020 and when this takes place, we will test
the module and if this is working as expected,
run the necessary scripts to archive the data
that should have been deleted.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020

Agency Staffing 2018/19
Final report issued December 2019
Ref No.
01

Recommendation

Page 139

We recommend that an HR led
workforce strategy for the use of
agency staff is formally established,
jointly agreed and implemented by
both Councils. It should cover the
financial, administration and overall
control benefits of using providers
such as Comensura as well as
providing clarity about the
circumstances when it is appropriate /
necessary to consider alternative
suppliers. It should also include
clearly defined responsibilities for
overseeing and monitoring the overall
use of agency staff and for carrying
out periodic reviews of agency staff.

Priority
Medium

Action to Date
Work has commenced on producing a guide
for managers in both Watford and Three
Rivers regarding compliance with agency
worker regulations and IR 35. This guide once
agreed will be provided to Audit for
information.

Responsibility

Deadline

Group Head of
Human
Resources &
Organisational
Development

1 April 2020

Resolved
 or 


Group Head of
Human
Resources &
Organisational
Development

1 April 2020



Revised
Deadline
31 July
2020

Position – February 2020
The guidelines have been drafted and will be
available on the intranet shortly. The action will
be completed in accordance with the original
timescale.
Position – July 2020
The situation is that the guide has been written
however, unfortunately with Covid-19 it has not
been shared with the appropriate management
teams or adopted as yet. We do, however,
have it planned to go to Operational
Leadership Team on 28 July.
Position – September 2020
The guide was approved at Operational
Leadership Team on 25 August 2020 and is
now live on the Intranet.

02

We recommend that appropriate
corporate policies and procedures are
established, formally agreed and then
implemented in both Councils
regarding the use of agency staff.
This should provide clarity about the
engagement process and the use of
Comensura or alternative suppliers.
Also, it should provide confirmation of
the key roles and responsibilities of
the local Service Areas, the shared
HR Service, and for financial

Medium

As above, we believe the guide will cover the
requirements for both councils.
Position – February 2020
The guidelines have been drafted and will be
available on the intranet shortly. The action will
be completed in accordance with the original
timescale.
Position – July 2020
The situation is that the guide has been written
however, unfortunately with Covid-19 it has not
been shared with the appropriate management

31 July
2020

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Agency Staffing 2018/19
Final report issued December 2019
Ref No.

Recommendation
administration, including appropriate
coding, in relation to the use of
agency staff.

Priority

Action to Date
teams or adopted as yet. We do, however,
have it planned to go to Operational
Leadership Team on 28 July.
Position – September 2020
The guide was approved at Operational
Leadership Team on 25 August 2020 and is
now live on the Intranet.

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

Page 140

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020

Audit Plan 2019/20
Development Management (pre-app process) 2019/20
Final report issued October 2019
Ref No.
01

Recommendation

Page 141

Management should produce written
guidance to inform the minimum
acceptable retention requirements for
major and minor pre-application
enquiries. This should make to clear
to planning officers if meetings,
telephone conversations and emails
with potential applicants during the
advisory period need to be
documented and stored on case files
for information request and auditing
purposes.

Priority
Medium

Action to Date
Agreed. The whole pre-application process will
be reviewed so that there is clear guidance.

Responsibility

Deadline

Interim Head of
Development
Management

31 December
2019

Resolved
 or 


Position – November 2019
In progress in accordance with original
timescale.

Revised
Deadline
31 August
2020
30 Sept
2020

Position – February 2020
Delayed as the Interim Head of Development
Management was replaced by a permanent
appointment at the beginning of February.
Revised deadline of 30 April 2020.
Position – July 2020
I’ve conducted the review consisting of
interviews with staff across the team. I have
started drafting the guidance and hope to issue
to staff later this month.

Management should periodically spot
check a sample of case files for major
pre-applications as a way to ensure
that the minimum acceptable
retention requirements are being
adhered to in practice.

Position – September 2020
In progress but slightly delayed.
02

The pre-application guidance for
should advise that meetings are not
minuted by the Council, and if a
record of what is discussed and
agreed by the parties during a
meeting is required then the onus is
on potential applicants rather than the
lead planning officer to provide the
administrative support for this.
Planning officers should attach a copy
of any minutes provided by potential
applicants to the relevant case file for
information request and audit
purposes.

Medium

Agreed. The whole pre-application process will
be reviewed so that there is clear guidance.
Position – November 2019
In progress in accordance with original
timescale.
Position – February 2020
Delayed as the Interim Head of Development
Management was replaced by a permanent
appointment at the beginning of February.
Revised deadline of 30 April 2020.
Position – July 2020
I’ve conducted the review consisting of

Interim Head of
Development
Management

31 December
2019



31 August
2020
30 Sept
2020

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Development Management (pre-app process) 2019/20
Final report issued October 2019
Ref No.

Recommendation

Priority

Action to Date

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 


Revised
Deadline
30 Sept
2020

interviews with staff across the team. I have
started drafting the guidance and hope to issue
to staff later this month.

Planning officers should ensure that
after each meeting with a potential
applicant (for a major project
proposal) the relevant case file is
updated with the date and main
outcomes for information request and
auditing purposes.

Page 142

Responsibility

Position – September 2020
In progress but slightly delayed.

Financial Account Reconciliations 2019/20
Final report issued December 2019
Ref No.
02

Recommendation
We recommend that all identified
reasons for differences are carried
forward and clearly shown in the next
periods explained comments column
where unresolved or action is
pending.
In addition, a date be detailed in the
reason / comment column to provide
a time trail leading back to the original
date the difference occurred.

Priority
Low

Action to Date
A review of financial procedures is currently
underway that will ensure a consistent
approach is taken.
Position – February 2020
We are currently working on the financial
regulations and we are on target to implement
a consistent approach for all reconciliations.
Position – July 2020
Due to the impact of Covid-19 this has been
delayed and will be reported back in
September.
Position – September 2020
The action is complete now. We have a
reconciliation tracker which monitors all
the financial account reconciliations and is
reported monthly to the Head of Finance.

Section Head Financial
Accounting and
Technical

31 March 2020

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020

Play Safety Inspections 2019/20
Final report issued December 2019
Ref No.
01

Recommendation
We recommend that the Contractor
maintains a complete list of all play
areas detailing the agreed inspection
regime in place for each site in
accordance with the Contract Service
Specification - Play Areas.

Priority
High

Action to Date
Noted and this will be discussed with Veolia
and added to the monthly ops meetings as an
agenda item. Random inspections by the
Contract Manager (Parks and Streets) will be
carried out quarterly.

Responsibility

Deadline
Jan 2020
onwards

Head of Parks,
Open Spaces &
Projects

Jan 2020
onwards

Revised
Deadline
Not yet
ascertained.



Not yet
ascertained.

Position – February 2020
Currently working with Veolia on this.
Processes being reviewed and clarified.

The Council should complete regular
spot checks of the records to ensure
compliance with the agreed
inspection regime and that they are
sufficient to provide an overview of
the current status of all play areas for
which the council has responsibility.

Page 143

Head of Parks,
Open Spaces &
Projects

Resolved
 or 


Position – July 2020
No update received.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

The Council should request that an
agenda item be added to the monthly
contract meetings in order to
summarise actual inspections being
completed and receipt of appropriate
operational and annual inspection
reports.
02

We recommend that operational
inspections are completed 3 times per
year for all play areas and reports of
each inspection should be submitted
to the Council.
As for the daily/weekly inspections, all
repairs and maintenance identified by
the ‘operational’ inspections should
be recorded in a spreadsheet and be
used to prioritise and monitor
completion of works in a timely
manner.
In addition, at the monthly contract
meetings, assurance should be

High

This will be discussed with Veolia and the
Contract Manager (Parks and Streets) to ask
for all records to be updated and will be
checked quarterly - this will also feature as a
part of the monthly ops meetings.
Position – February 2020
Currently working with Veolia on this.
Processes being reviewed and clarified.
Position – July 2020
No update received.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Play Safety Inspections 2019/20
Final report issued December 2019
Ref No.

Recommendation

Priority

Action to Date

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

gained on the completion of the
remedial works required from the
operational inspections.
03

We recommend that annual
inspection reports are revised to
include details of the company,
inspectors name (initials only) and
their qualifications or registration.

Medium

This will be discussed with Veolia and the
Contract Manager (Parks and Streets) to ask
for all records to be updated and will be
checked annually.

Jan 2020
onwards



Not yet
ascertained.

Head of Parks,
Open Spaces &
Projects

Jan 2020
onwards



Not yet
ascertained.

Position – February 2020
Currently working with Veolia on this.
Processes being reviewed and clarified.

In addition, the presentation and
clarity of the inspection and risk
assessment information be improved
to make a clear distinction and
relative link between the equipment
inspection scores and risk
assessment score.
A key to the scoring and expected
actions should be provided.

Page 144

Head of Parks,
Open Spaces &
Projects

Position – July 2020
No update received.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

The Council to ensure it receives the
annual inspection reports for all play
areas within the expected timeframes.
04

We recommend that an agreed
accident reporting protocol should be
documented and implemented to
ensure accidents and reports relevant
to play areas are investigated
appropriately and outcomes stored in
a database available to the Council.
Any agreed protocol should include
when the Council should see any
draft responses / communications
prior to being sent to the persons
(public) involved in reporting the
accident.
It is recommended that any accident

Medium

Noted and will be discussed with Veolia and a
protocol developed.
Position – February 2020
Currently working with Veolia on this.
Processes being reviewed and clarified.
Position – July 2020
No update received.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Play Safety Inspections 2019/20
Final report issued December 2019
Ref No.

Recommendation

Priority

Action to Date

Responsibility

Noted and will be discussed with Veolia and a
protocol developed.

Head of Parks,
Open Spaces &
Projects

Head of Parks,
Open Spaces &
Projects

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

Jan 2020
onwards



Not yet
ascertained.

Jan 2020
onwards



Not yet
ascertained.

reported to the contractor is
immediately notified to the Council for
awareness and monitoring purposes.
All accident inspection outcomes
should be reviewed by the Council
and the inspection regime adjusted as
appropriate.
Any lessons learned could form part
of the monthly contract meeting.
05

Page 145

The Contractor should be required to
maintain an overview spreadsheet of
all inspections completed to include
the following:

details of all works required,

priority of works,

date works order passed to subcontractor or completed in house,
and

any equipment taken out of use
pending assessment or repair.

Medium

Position – February 2020
Currently working with Veolia on this.
Processes being reviewed and clarified.
Position – July 2020
No update received.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

This spreadsheet should be used to
monitor completion of works in a
timely manner.
We also recommend that the various
templates in use for inspections are
standardised to ensure a consistent
approach for all inspections.
06

We recommend that upon receipt of
the annual reports a programme of
works required is completed which is
prioritised and planned. The timely
completion of works should be
monitored, and appropriate action
taken if necessary.

Medium

To be discussed with Veolia and a programme
developed.
Position – February 2020
Currently working with Veolia on this.
Processes being reviewed and clarified.

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Play Safety Inspections 2019/20
Final report issued December 2019
Ref No.

Recommendation

Priority

We recommend that a planned
maintenance / service schedule be
created for all play equipment as per
the manufacturer’s instructions.

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline



Not yet
ascertained.

Position – July 2020
No update received.

Where items of equipment are
considered at risk, these should be
reassessed and reported at the next
contract meeting.
07

Action to Date

Position – September 2020
No update received.
Medium

To be discussed with Veolia and a programme
developed.

Head of Parks,
Open Spaces &
Projects

Jan 2020
onwards

Position – February 2020
Currently working with Veolia on this.
Processes being reviewed and clarified.

Page 146

Position – July 2020
No update received.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

Cyber Security 2019/20
Final report issued January 2020
Ref No.
02

Recommendation
Furthermore, there should be
requirement to have a process to
perform a full scan on the end point
devices and servers on a regular
basis.

Priority
Medium

Action to Date
Agreed
Position – February 2020
No action as yet.
Position – July 2020
No action as yet.
Position – September 2020
In progress, trialling of a monthly user end
point full scan and a monthly server

Responsibility
Head of ICT

Deadline
30 September
2020

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Cyber Security 2019/20
Final report issued January 2020
Ref No.

Recommendation

Priority

Action to Date

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

endpoint full scan. Will be resolved by 30
September.
03

The Councils should determine an
appropriate percentage of staff that
should complete the cyber security
training – best practice would be
100%. Performance against this
target should be monitored and
reported.

Medium

Agreed

Head of ICT

30 April 2020

31
December
2020

Position – February 2020
In progress. Security awareness training in the
process of being updated prior to being
circulated to all staff for completion.
Position – July 2020
Security training updated, but yet to be
confirmed to all staff. Delayed due to COVID
related activities.

Page 147

Position – September 2020
Cyber Security training module reminder to
all staff as a mandatory module will be
emailed through September 2020.

Debtors 2019/20
Final report issued June 2020
Ref No.
01

Recommendation
We recommend that:


A check is undertaken for all
cases that are on hold (this
should be a routine task
undertaken at suitable intervals to
be determined by management);



Reminders are produced and sent
in a timely manner;

Priority
Medium

Action to Date
Work has already begun on this
recommendation as it forms part of the bigger
Recovery Review. We have requested some
different reports from the Efin system to help
us better monitor s/debts. In terms of the bullet
point about ensuring instalments are correctly
applied, I would like it noted that we are not
always responsible for applying instalments.
Some of this work is done by the services
themselves. As part of the Recovery review I

Responsibility
Revenues
Manager

Deadline
30 June 2020

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

APPENDIX C – INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW UP - SEPTEMBER 2020
Debtors 2019/20
Final report issued June 2020
Ref No.

Recommendation


Instalment reminder lists should
be checked and reviewed to
ensure that instalments are
correctly applied and are being
adhered with (this should be a
routine task undertaken at
suitable intervals to be
determined by management).

Priority

Action to Date
will be meeting with all services to remind them
to set up instalments plans that are reasonable
etc. and we will be terminating instalment
plans that currently see the arrangement going
on into 2045 and beyond! As a recovery team
we will then monitor the arrangement plans
and chase for missing payments etc.
Position – July 2020
No update received.
Position – September 2020
No update received.

Responsibility

Deadline

Resolved
 or 

Revised
Deadline

Page 148

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

Page 149

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

Management
Response

1.

Herts Home
Improvement
Agency 2018/19.
These
recommendations
and their
implementation
status are
overseen and
monitored by
Hertfordshire
County Council
as the lead
authority but are
included here for
Member
information.

High Priority
The HHIA should review
the current business
continuity and succession
planning arrangements in
place to ensure that the
service can continue to
function in the absence of
key officers.
Given the existing
recruitment difficulties, the
Board should critically
review whether the
existing pay grading
structure is sufficient, or
indeed whether
recruitment difficulties
relate to underlying issues
in respect of the structure,
job roles and
responsibilities within the
Agency.
The above
recommendation is critical
as whilst the HHIA may be
able to secure sufficient
staff capacity through the
use of temporary staff, this
is not financially
sustainable within the
business model, nor does

New Senior
Management structure
in place:
Head of Service
reporting to Head of
Hertfordshire
Equipment Service.
Longer term continuity
to be reviewed as part
of the review project.
Put in place staffing to
support the service
whilst review is
undertaken:
- MA overseeing
Operations team but
not undertaking
operations tasks
- Operations Manager
replaced by Senior
Technical Officer
(Agency) with sole
focus on progressing
projects
- SE acts as
cover/support for MA
- Business
Development Manager
resigned – to be
replaced by Business

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date
Head of
HHIA and
Head of
Hertfordshire
Equipment
Service
(HES).

In place.

In place / in
progress.

History of
Management
Comments
August 2019
New Senior
Management team in
place and recruitment
for Business Analyst
will be complete August
2019. Senior Technical
Officer role re-graded
and out to advert
August 2019. In
discussion with HR to
create a career grade
for Technical roles to
improve ability to attract
staff. Quality
Improvement plan
under discussion but
may be a long-term
project. Quality
Improvement Plan
target subject to review.
October 2019
Standard Operating
Procedures are being
developed and are
nearing completion.
The new Business
Analyst is now in post
and will provide both

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)
Implemented

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation
it provide the required
workforce stability that the
HHIA requires to provide a
consistent level of service
and drive through key
business change activities.

Management
Response

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

Page 150

Analyst (fixed term 1
year)
Work with HR
colleagues to review
current structure, with
particular focus on
technical roles,
although there needs to
be an acceptance that
there will be short-term
reliance on agency staff
in technical roles until
these can be reviewed.
Undertake Financial
Analysis to understand
potential to grow
staffing with revenue
Review of processes to
improve productivity
and stop blockages. To
be incorporated in
recovery plan.

Oct/Nov 2019

Oct/Nov 2019

In progress

History of
Management
Comments

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

strategic and
operational statistics
alongside case
monitoring
infrastructure. A new
caseworker started in
November and
technical officer have
been recruited and due
to start on 9 Dec 19.
Senior Technical
Officer role was regraded and interviews
are taking place this
month for the second
time. A review of the
HIA team structure is
due to take place in
early 2020. As the HIA
moves towards a client
centred approach.
February 2020
HHIA follow-up audit in
progress.
August 2020
The recommendation
has been implemented.

2.

Herts Home
Improvement

High Priority
Further training should be

Undertaking review of
CMS system

Head of
HHIA and

In progress
completion by

August 2019
Review and process

Implemented

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Page 151

Report Title

Recommendation

Agency 2018/19.
As above.

provided to HHIA staff to
ensure that the case
management system is
completed and updated in
line with expectations.
Regular data quality
checks should be
performed on the case
management system to
obtain assurance that
records are updated in an
accurate and timely
manner (including a
review of data exceptions
– e.g. blank fields).
A mapping exercise
should be performed to
identify the key fields
within the case
management system that
support key monitoring
and KPI routines, with
data quality checks
focusing in particular on
these areas.
We also recommend that
HCC Finance is provided
with access to a reporting
suite within the case
management system,
sufficient to support the
production of financial

Management
Response
Process mapping
exercise completed to
understand how staff
currently use the
system and where
changes need to be
made
Identification of training
needs for staff and
resource to undertake
these. Training to
include inputting and
quality of data.
Super-user / system
manager to be
identified to oversee
data checks, develop
the system e.g. for
mobile working, and
work with Finance to
develop reporting suite.
Review access to CMS/
other reporting suites
for Finance to allow for
improved financial
reporting or define how
this will be achieved
e.g. Business Analyst
to report on non-SAP
data.

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date
Business
Improvement
Manager.

August 2019.
Mapping
complete.
Further
recommendatio
n by Aug 2019.
By August 2019
Training by Oct
2019.

Autumn 2019
(funding and
resource
dependent)

Autumn 2019

History of
Management
Comments
mapping complete.
Some training
completed July 2019
and Business Analyst
(when in post) to
oversee superusers
and work with Finance
to develop reporting
protocols. Due to
issues raised in review,
a meeting is to be held
with Foundations and
systems developer in
August 2019 to raise
issues around
outstanding
development of the
system. Report will be
made to HHIA Board
regarding potential
options which could
include replacing the
system when the
current contract ends
(Sept 2020)
October 2019
A full review of the
CMS system has now
been completed.
Report is available with recommendations
now being incorporated

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation
monitoring / Board reports.

Management
Response

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

History of
Management
Comments
into the audit tracker for
monitoring.
All current HIA staff will
undertake " Ferret
Training" in January
2019 to ensure all staff
are "up skilled" and we
are resilient as a team.

Page 152

The new Business
Analyst will be the
Super user of the team,
followed by Senior
Business Support after
training. The Business
Analyst has begun
working with finance to
align CMS and SAP
reporting. The Business
analyst starting from
November to undertake
random monthly "spot
check" audits.
February 2020.
HHIA follow-up audit in
progress.
August 2020
The recommendation
has been implemented.

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

Page 153

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

3.

Herts Home
Improvement
Agency 2018/19.
As above.

High Priority
A formal review of the
current format, approach
and underlying information
to support reporting of
financial position of the
HHIA should be
undertaken. This should
include:
- Review of the structure
of financial performance
reports, in particular
ensuring that financial
projections are clearly
linked to performance and
other key information
(such as staff capacity, job
over-runs etc).
- Where assumptions are
being included, in
particular significant
increases in activity,
appropriate identification
of key risks to their
achievement should be
included.
- Clearer evidence should
be provided of existing
performance of the HHIA
against anticipated
performance profiles

Management
Response

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date
Head of
HHIA, Head
of HES and
Head of
Accountancy
Services.

Review Finance
reporting with the
Finance team. Utilise
Finance Graduate
capacity to put in place
systems to capture staff
capacity.

September
2019

Review 2018/19 data to
identify activity trends
and predict for 2019/20.
Identify current risks
and report on those to
Board.

September
2019

Develop KPI
projections and report
to Board where action
is being taken to
address issues or
meet/exceed
projections.

History of
Management
Comments

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

August 2019
No update as actions
not yet due.

Partially
Implemented

October 2019
A review is taking place
to build a more cost
effective structure. A
business case is being
developed and will be
presented early 2020.

Revised
Implementation
Date:
June 2021

The new Business
Analyst is now in post
and beginning to
provide strategic and
operational statistical
analysis and case
monitoring
infrastructure.

A new caseworker has
been recruited and
started on the 4 Nov
2019. A Technical
November 2019
Officer has been
appointed and due to
start in Dec 19.
The Business Analyst
has developed a set of
Key Performance

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

Page 154

(financial and nonfinancial), with clear
statements provided of
corrective actions being
taken where targets are
not being met.
- A mapping process
should be considered
between the financial
information required to
populate Board Reports
and the sources where
this could be derived from,
with an assessment also
made on the reliability of
that information.
- Finally, further clarity
should be provided on the
respective roles and
responsibilities of HCC
Finance and HHIA
management in relation to
creating financial /
performance reports for
the HHIA Board. Should
reports continue to be
substantially prepared by
Finance, these should be
subject to final
authorisation by the Head
of Service or relevant
Assistant Director to

Management
Response

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

History of
Management
Comments
Indicators and will
present to HHIA Board
in November 2019.

Finance Graduate to
work with CMS Project
Manager to look at
financial reporting
within both CMS and
SAP to improve
accuracy and reliability
of reporting.
Review of above
actions when complete
to agree on future
reporting protocol.
Consider potential
options such as
preparation of reports
by Business Analyst or
Finance having access
to CMS/ financial
spreadsheets.

September
2019

The financial reporting
review has now been
completed.
Improvements which
were introduced have
resulted in the HHIA
finance reporting now
being delegated to an
accountancy officer.

February 2020
HHIA follow-up audit in
December 2019 progress.
August 2020
The HIA have
completed considerable
work to improve
financial monitoring
procedures for the HIA
partners and overall.
However, further work
is required to ensure
that financial
projections are made
robustly, and the roles
and responsibilities of
the HIA and Finance

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

Management
Response

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

reduce the risks of a lack
of future ownership.

4.

Herts Home
Improvement
Agency 2018/19.
As above.

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

are clearly defined.
Therefore, the status of
this recommendation
remains in progress.
Head of
HHIA

Page 155

Medium Priority
Acknowledging that the
Board are currently
developing a revised suite
of key performance
indicators for the HHIA, we
recommend that this
review includes
consideration of:
- Whether, given the
activity-based model,
the suite of proposed
indicators is sufficiently
wide to provide
assurance over the
robustness of outturn
estimates. For
example, indicators on
areas such as capacity,
productivity and
contribution margins
(per job) would assist
the Board in gaining
assurance that the use
of resources is on track
to achieve targets.

History of
Management
Comments

Revised suite of KPIs
to be agreed with HHIA
Board – this needs to
include finance and
non-finance.

Sept 2019

August 2019
Due to identified issues
with CMS system, new
KPIs cannot be agreed
as it is unclear what
data the system will
provide. Contractor
KPIs awaiting
implementation but
delayed due to issues
with Framework
concerning VAT
queries.
October 2019
No update sourced.
February 2020
HHIA follow-up audit in
progress.
August 2020
While the KPIs for the
HIA and for contractors
have been created,
specific threshold
targets have not been

Partially
Implemented
Revised
Implementation
Date:
May 2021

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

- In relation to quality
measures, the Board
should also ensure that
these provide sufficient
assurance over both
contractor performance
and also internal
processes designed to
embed quality.

Management
Response

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

Herts Home
Improvement
Agency 2018/19.
As above.

Quality KPIs for
contractors to be
developed and reported
to Board.

Medium Priority
As part of the
development of the final
business plan for 2018 to
2021, consideration
should be given to further
expanding the document
to address the comments
included within the audit
finding.

Management Team
and project support to
revise business plan
once recovery project
plan in place Support
will be sought from
Finance team to assist
with financial
projections. Board to
approve.

Prior to approving the
revised Business Plan, the
Board should ensure
objectives and financial

Project work to include
review of Discretionary
Policy and potential
demand its full

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

formalised.
Performance is being
reported on rather than
1st report
compared to a preNov’19 for
period Jun-Sept established target.
Therefore, this
19
recommendation has
been assessed as
partially implemented.
HHIA will set targets
against the indicators
for 2020/21 and this will
be presented to HHIA
partnership board going
forward and once
agreed.

Page 156
5.

History of
Management
Comments

Head of
HHIA and
Head of HES

Dec 2019

August 2019
No update as actions
not yet due.
October 2019
No update sourced.

Dec 2019

February 2020
Financial business
case has been
prepared. This will then
be used to develop a
full business case for
Spring 2020.

Partially
Implemented
Revised
Implementation
Date:
May 2021

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

6.

Report Title

Page 157

Herts Home
Improvement
Agency 2018/19.
As above.

Recommendation

Management
Response

projections included are
sufficiently evidence
based and achievable, as
opposed to aspirations
that without significant
additional resource would
not be achievable.

implementation may
create to help map any
increased staffing
need.

Medium Priority
The HHIA should revise
existing systems to ensure
that post work inspection
and sign-off are completed
and documented in all
cases, with this also being
recorded within the case
management system.

Pre and post-works
schedules for
inspection to be
developed and
implemented and to be
included on CMS as
part of the DFG
process. Periodic
checks to be performed
by MA or Business
Analyst to ensure
processes are being
followed.

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

History of
Management
Comments

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

August 2020
A business case for the
HIA has been
approved, but this has
not yet been developed
into a full business plan
as a result of disruption
due to COVID-19.
Head of
HHIA

January 2020

August 2019
No update as actions
not yet due.
October 2019
No update sourced.
February 2020
There is now a
Technical Officer who
conducts all pre-starts
and Practical
Completions Sign off
independent of the
Trusted Assessor and
other technical officers.
The Business Analyst
has now started and
performance reporting
has now began.
Regular spot check

Implemented

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

Management
Response

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

History of
Management
Comments
audits are taking place
now by the Business
Analysts to ensure that
all documents are
uploaded.

Page 158

August 2020
Standard sign off
sheets have been
created that must be
completed and
uploaded to the CMS.
There is one instance
where the post-work
sign-off sheet has not
been uploaded to the
system. This has
required a change in
culture, and a lack of
time for the new
processes to be fully
embedded prior to the
follow up audit taking
place.
As the standard sign-off
procedures are in
place, we are satisfied
that the agreed
management actions
have been
implemented.

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

7.

Herts Home
Improvement
Agency 2018/19.
As above.

High Priority
We recommend that the
HHIA seeks further
clarification (in writing)
from the relevant
government department in
relation to the restrictions
on recovering overheads
from the DFG. This should
include the position on
whether:

Page 159

- It is permissible to
recover general staff
costs that are relevant
to delivering the
service, but which
cannot be attributed to
a specific project;
- The current design and
project management
fee charges, which by
their nature are set at a
level to recover
overheads, are
permissible within the
grant conditions; and
- The cost of extended
warranties can be
funded through the

Management
Response
Meet with Foundations
to seek relevant advice
and understand where
written assurances can
be sought in relation to
staff costs and fees.
Use information
obtained to inform
project plan e.g.
develop policy
concerning warranties.
Project support to work
with SE/MA and
Business Intelligence to
develop timesheet
tracker system for staff
activities, similar to
those in use by SIAS
and HCC HR. These
will more accurately
track how resources
are utilised.
Review charges for
works that are aborted
– currently no costs are
recovered so charging
scheme to be put in
place (if deemed
permissible)

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date
Head of
HHIA and
Head of HES

July 2019

Oct/Nov 2019

October 2019

History of
Management
Comments
August 2019
Advice sought from
Foundations was
contradictory but further
investigation around
warranties is in
progress. Fees and
charges and abortive
works are being
reviewed with a view to
implementation and a
time tracker for staff is
in preparation (finance
looking at costings to
be input prior to
development of
tracker). Revenue
model to be reviewed
at end of financial year
once changes made to
discretionary policy,
charges etc.
October 2019
The director of ACS
Iain MacBeath wrote to
MHCLG in June.

October 2019

There has on-going
conversation with
finance regarding
capitalisation of staff

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)
Partially
Implemented
Revised
implementation
Date:
May 2021

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation
DFG, given the wider
value for money
implications if this not
permissible.

Page 160

Given the above comment
on staff overhead costs,
we also recommend that
the HHIA introduce more
formal systems to
evidence and monitor the
chargeable activities
performed by staff. We
highlight that the
implementation of a
timesheet system would
also ensure that
appropriate evidence is
available to support claims
made against the DFG
and will allow an increased
level of management
information to be produced
on staff productivity.
Should the HHIA not be
financially viable without
100% recovery of all staff
costs or overheads
through the DFG,
consideration should be
given as to whether this

Management
Response

Review viability of
revenue model after the
above actions have
been taken and
analysis made. Also
consider potential
revenue in light of
review of discretionary
policy/ resources
needed.

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

History of
Management
Comments
overheads. The head of
service has completed
analysis of capitalised
staff activity. This has
been agreed with
finance.

End 2019/20
financial year

We are currently
investigation the
possibilities of
incorporating
maintenance
agreements into
applications of specific
adaptations
We are currently
looking at a supervision
system to
evidence/support the
head of service analyse
staffing time against
capitalisation.
February 2020
HHIA follow-up audit in
progress.
August 2020
The HHIA have
completed considerable
work to begin
assessing the methods

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

Management
Response

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

issue could be resolved
through DFG funding
being retained by the
individual partners,
allowing the HHIA to
invoice as a third party,
although further legal and
finance advice would be
required.

Page 161
Herts Home
Improvement
Agency 2018/19.
As above.

Medium Priority
Should the contractor
referred to in the audit
finding still be required to
complete any outstanding

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

of cost recovery
available to the
Service. A project plan
has been created to
outline when costs can
be recovered in respect
of warrantees, and
where works are
aborted. A timesheet
system has been
implemented, with
further developments
scheduled when the IT
resource can be made
available.

Alternatively, the HHIA
would need to investigate
whether it is viable to
increase the volume of
non-DFG funded
adaptations, thereby
providing a separate
income route to address
any shortfalls in costs that
are recoverable from the
DFG.

8.

History of
Management
Comments

While all of the above
actions have been
completed, the overall
status of the
recommendation
remains as in progress
as work to assess the
viability of the revenue
model has currently not
been completed.
Contractor suspended
from working with HHIA

Head of
HHIA, Head
of HES and
Head of
Accountancy

Complete

August 2019
No update as actions
not yet due.
October 2019

Partially
Implemented
Revised
implementation

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation

Management
Response

works for legacy projects,
the HHIA should consider
undertaking a full Dun and
Bradstreet financial report
to provide assurance over
the company structure and
financial stability, given the
potentially confusing
company structures that
appear to be in place.

Page 162

In addition, further advice
should be sought from
Legal to confirm that the
contracts in place for the
works (which may have
originally been assigned to
Eco Friendly) are still valid
based on the company
structure.

The HHIA should
investigate the two
duplicate payments
referred to in the audit
finding, seeking additional
support from Finance and
Legal to identify if the
overpayments have been

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date
Services

Specific credit checks
to be made in the event
that works are felt to be
either sensitive or high
value. Procedure to be
developed. Otherwise,
yearly check made of
all contractors
Review of 2018/19
payments to identify
any duplicates with aim
to recover with Finance
and Legal

Agreement with client

End Financial
Year 19/20

History of
Management
Comments
Contractor has been
suspended from our
use and credit checks
will occur when high
value or sensitive. No
further duplicate
payments outstanding
and remedial works
being completed. All
actions completed
aside from sign off on
remedial works.
August 2020
The contractor in
question has been
suspended from all
work and contractors
are required to provide
proof of liability
insurance annually.

September
2019

While all remedial
works for the client are
now practically
complete, these are not
yet formally signed off
by the client and the
HIA; therefore, the
status of this
recommendation
remains as in progress.

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)
date:
May 2021

APPENDIX D – IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF HIGH AND MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE HERTS
HOME IMPROVEMENT AGENCY AUDIT

No.

Report Title

Recommendation
recovered, and if not, how
these may be able to be
recovered (i.e. if Eco
Friendly is no longer a
trading entity).

Page 163

Finally, the HHIA should
confirm that the client for
the works (referred to in
audit finding) received
appropriate compensation
for the damage to property
during the project.

Management
Response
that remedial works are
to be undertaken and
contractor moved from
site rather than offer of
compensation paid.
Matter has not been
raised as a formal
complaint by client,
who wants works
rectified.

Responsible Implementation
Officer
Date

In progress

History of
Management
Comments
HHIA will use HCC’s
SAP vender numbers
that are unique to each
contractor on the CMS
system and use these
on invoice submissions
so payments can be
clearly checked.

SIAS
Comment
(August 2020)

